
Meeting Accessibility Services and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Notice:  City Hall Annex is accessible to persons with 
disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be 
made at least 48 hours before the meeting to the City Recorder (503) 864-2221 ext. 517 or myork@daytonoregon.gov.   Page 1 of 2 

 

 
AGENDA 

DAYTON CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR SESSION 

 
DATE: MONDAY, MARCH 06, 2023    
TIME: 6:30 PM 
PLACE: DAYTON CITY HALL ANNEX – 408 FERRY STREET, DAYTON, OREGON 
VIRTUAL: ZOOM MEETING – ORS 192.670/HB 2560 
 

You may join the Council Meeting online via Zoom Meeting at: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89781492979            
or you can call in and listen via Zoom:   1 346 248-7799 or 1 720 707-2699 
   

Dayton – Rich in History . . . Envisioning Our Future 
 
 
ITEM     DESCRIPTION                                                                                                        PAGE # 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

      
B. ROLL CALL  
 
C. APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 
 

The public is encouraged to relay concerns and/or comments to the City Council in one of the following 
methods: 
 

• Email – any time up to 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to myork@daytonoregon.gov. The Mayor 
will read the comments emailed to the City Recorder. 

• Appear in person – if you would like to speak during public comment, please sign-up on the sign-in 
sheet located on the table when you enter the Council Chambers.  

• Appear by Telephone only – please sign up prior to the meeting by emailing the City Recorder at 
myork@daytonoregon.gov. (The chat function is not available when calling by phone into Zoom.) 

• Appear virtually via Zoom – once you are in the meeting, send a chat directly to the City Recorder, 
Melissa York, use the raise hand feature in Zoom to request to speak during public comment. The 
City Recorder will need to your first and last name, address and contact information (email or phone 
number) before you are invited to speak.  
 

When it is your turn, the Mayor will announce your name and your microphone will be unmuted.   
 
D. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Regular Session Meeting Minutes – February 06, 2023                   01-06 
 
E. ACTION ITEMS 

1. Approval of Resolution 22/23-10 Declaring April 2023 National Child Abuse                 07-12 
Prevention Month, Carole Joa and Katie Bowman – Juliette’s House          

2. FY 21-22 Audit Presentation, Devan Esch, Grove, Mueller and Swank       13-76          
3. Awarding of Inflow and Infiltration Study - Keller & Associates                 77-80 
4. OLCC Annual Liquor License Renewal                   81-86 
5. Approval of City Council Strategic Goals for FY 23-24         87-94 
  

 
                 

mailto:myork@daytonoregon.gov
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89781492979
mailto:myork@daytonoregon.gov
mailto:myork@daytonoregon.gov


 

Meeting Accessibility Services and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Notice:  City Hall Annex is accessible to persons with disabilities. 
A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours before the meeting to the City Recorder (503) 864-2221 ext. 517 or myork@daytonoregon.gov.     Page 2 of 2 

 

 
F. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS/CONCERNS 
 
 
G. INFORMATION REPORTS    
            1. City Manager’s Report          95-109          
 
H. ADJOURN  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
 
Posted:  March 02, 2023          
By:  Melissa York, City Recorder 
 

 
 
 

NEXT MEETING DATES 
City Council Regular Session Meeting, Monday, April 03, 2023 
City Council Work Session Meeting, Monday, April 17, 2023 

 
 

Virtually via Zoom and in Person; City Hall Annex, 408 Ferry Street, Dayton, Oregon 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

mailto:myork@daytonoregon.gov


MINUTES 
DAYTON CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR SESSION  
February 06, 2023 

 
 PRESENT: Mayor Trini Marquez   ABSENT:    
   Council President Jim Maguire 

Councilor Annette Frank 
   Councilor Kitty Mackin (via Zoom) 
   Councilor Rosalba Sandoval-Perez (via Zoom) 
   Councilor Luke Wildhaber 
   Councilor Andrew Hildebrandt 
            

STAFF: Rochelle Roaden, City Manager 
  Melissa York, City Recorder 
  Josh Bilodeau, Public Works Supervisor 
        
A. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Mayor Marquez called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. and those present gave the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

 
B. ROLL CALL 

 
Mayor Marquez noted there was a quorum with Councilors Frank, Maguire, Wildhaber,  
and Hildebrandt attending the meeting in person. Councilors Sandoval-Perez and Mackin  
attending via Zoom. 

 
C. APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 
 

No one in attendance wanted to comment at tonight’s meeting. 
  
D. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Approval of Meeting Minutes  
 

1. Regular Meeting Minutes from January 03, 2023 
 

ANNETTE FRANK MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF 
THE REGULAR SESSION CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
OF JANUARY 3, 2023 AS WRITTEN. SECONDED BY ANDREW 
HILDEBRANDT. Motion carried with Frank, Mackin, Maguire, 
Sandoval-Perez, Wildhaber, Hildebrandt and Marquez voting aye.  
  

E.   ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. Approval of Resolution 22/23-08 US Bank Signing Authority 
   

Rochelle Roaden, City Manager stated that Resolution 22/23-08 was a Resolution 
adding Council President Jim Maguire as a bank signer to the City's bank account with  
US Bank. It was also noted that an amendment to remove US Bank McMinnville, OR  
branch wording from Resolution 22/23-08 since there is no longer a US Bank in 
McMinnville. 

1



JIM MAGUIRE MOVED TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 22/23-08, A 
RESOLUTION CHANGING SIGNATURE AUTHORITY FOR US 
BANK PRIMARY CHECKING ACCOUNT AS AMENDED.  
SECONDED BY ANNETTE FRANK. Motion carried with Frank, 
Mackin, Maguire, Sandoval-Perez, Wildhaber, Hildebrandt and Marquez 
voting aye.  

2. Approval of Resolution 22/23-09 Small City Allotment (SCA) Grant

Rochelle Roaden stated that the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT)
distributes five million each year through the Small Cities Allotment Grant for cities
with populations less than 5,000. The city applied for the grant to overlay 7th Street
and part of 9th Street.

ODOT received 84 applications and awarded 27 projects. City of Dayton was awarded
$250,000. The grant had increased from $100,000 per year to $250,000 and the
resolution was needed to accept the additional funds and to give the City Manager
authority to execute the grant agreement.

ANNETTE FRANK MOVED TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 22/23-
09, A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A SMALL CITY ALLOTMENT 
GRANT FOR $250,000 FROM THE OREGON DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION FOR THE OVERLAY OF 7TH  STREET 
BETWEEN FERRY AND ASH STREET  AND A PORTION OF 9TH 
STREET BETWEEN FERRY AND ASH STREET. SECONDED BY 
JIM MAGUIRE. Motion carried with Frank, Mackin, Maguire, 
Sandoval-Perez, Wildhaber, Hildebrandt and Marquez voting aye.  

3. Approval of Historic Preservation Committee Reappointment

Rochelle Roaden explained that the Dayton Historic Preservation Committee (HPC)
was a five-member committee. She named the current HPC members and stated that
the term for Kim Courtin had expired on December 31, 2022, and was seeking
reappointment for another four-year term.

Kim Courtin had a conflict with another meeting on the third Wednesday of each
month. Staff reviewed the meeting date with the remaining members of the committee
requesting to change the HPC meetings to the 2nd Wednesday of the month. All current
HPC committee members agreed to the date change.

ANNETTE FRANK MOVED TO REAPPOINT KIM COURTIN TO 
THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMITTEE FOR A FOUR-
YEAR TERM THAT EXPIRES ON DECEMBER 31, 2026. 
SECONDED BY ANDREW HILDEBRANDT. Motion carried with 
Frank, Mackin, Maguire, Sandoval-Perez, Wildhaber, Hildebrandt and 
Marquez voting aye.  

2



4. Awarding of Inflow and Infiltration Study

Rochelle Roaden stated that in November of 2022 the City was issued a violation and fined
by the Department of Environmental Equality (DEQ) for failing to meet BOD and TSS limits
set in our National Pollutant Discharge Elimination Permit (NPDES). DEQ outlined a
two-step response which included a report evaluating the operations of the treatment facility,
the city submitted the operations evaluation report, which was completed by the City
Engineer, Westech Engineering, in January 2023.

The second step was to obtain an Inflow and Infiltration (I&I) study of the collection
system which included smoke testing of the entire collection system. Staff contacted
Westech Engineering, Duke's Root Control, Inc., and Keller and Associates for quotes
on performing the I&I study. One bid had been received from Keller and Associates for
$34,490.

Business Oregon invited the City, to apply for a $20,000 grant to offset the cost of the I&I
report, which would bring the City's cost down to approximately $14,500. A 10%
contingency had been added to the total amount of the project.

JIM MAGUIRE MOVED TO APPROVE AWARDING THE 
INFLOW AND INFILTRATION STUDY REQUIRED BY THE 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY TO KELLER 
AND ASSOCIATES WITH A NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF 
$38,000. SECONDED BY ANNETTE FRANK. Motion carried with 
Frank, Mackin, Maguire, Sandoval-Perez, Wildhaber, Hildebrandt and 
Marquez voting aye.  

5. Domain Migration to DaytonOregon.gov Discussion

Rochelle Roaden explained that one of the City's Strategic Goals had been to migrate
over to DaytonOregon.gov from ci.dayton.or.us.

The Domain/Website change from ci.dayton.or.us to DaytonOregon.gov would
begin the weekend of February 10-12, 2023, and the migration would be completed
by Monday, February 13, 2023.

New nametags and business cards with the updated information would be ordered for the
Mayor and City Council.

6. City of Dayton 2022 Annual Survey Results Discussion

Rochelle Roaden explained that the 2022 City of Dayton Annual Survey was part of the
City's Strategic Goals. The first annual survey was in 2020 and 247 responses were
received that year.

The 2022 survey was published in two separate surveys - one in English and one in Spanish.
Council felt that would make it more accessible to the Spanish-speaking community.

3



 
A variety of survey collector methods were listed, and it was noted that 112 English  
responses and 2 Spanish responses were received for the 2022 survey and participation 
levels had gone down compared to previous years. 
 
Councilor Frank requested a summary of the 2022 Annual Survey to be included in the  
Strategic Goals meeting packet. 
 
A discussion took place regarding the various responses from the survey. 

 
7. Park Improvement Projects Survey Results Discussion 

 
Rochelle Roaden stated that at the October 3, 2022, City Council Meeting, the Council 
reviewed a comparable parks projects list created by city staff. The City Council wanted 
to hear input from the Dayton residents and requested staff to put together a survey. At the 
October 17, 2022, Council Work Session, the Council approved the survey which asked two 
questions. The first was to prioritize 8 projects that were designed as either short term or 
completed in the next 5 years or long term completed in 5-10 years. The second question  
was an open-ended comment to suggest different park improvement projects or any  
comments for the Dayton City Council. 
 
The survey took place in November 2022, and the Council reviewed the initial results at 
the December 5, 2022, Council meeting. This was being brought back to City Council for 
further review, discussion, and direction prior to the Strategic Planning Work Session on 
February 21, 2023. 
 
There were 224 English and 10 Spanish Survey responses and the top three for each 
were listed. 
 
A discussion took place about the various responses to the survey, top picks, costs, grants, 
potential Parks Master Plan updates, and how the Council wanted to move forward.  
 
Councilor Maguire inquired when the last Parks Master Plan was updated.  
 
Rochelle Roaden stated that she thought that the Parks Master Plan was updated in either  
2008 or 2009. This could be part of the Strategic Goals list and prioritized during the 
Strategic Goals Planning meeting. 
 
Councilor Maguire stated that there were no requirements to spend the $100k budgeted 
in the Parks Capital Fund this year and that it might be time to put the Parks Master  
Plan update on the Strategic Goals list for this year. 
 
Mayor Marquez suggested to look into less expensive current bathroom rental options. 
 
Councilor Wildhaber stated that most of the discussion was focused on bathrooms, and 
his direction would be to put in one bathroom now and apply for grants for the others  
later. 
 
Councilor Hildebrandt suggested utilizing a local excavating company to save funds.  

  
4



   
 
Councilor Frank suggested to research grants for the basketball courts. 

 
F. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS/CONCERNS 

 
Mayor Marquez asked the Council if they wanted to continue meeting adjournments with a  
motion, a second, and meeting adjournment, or would they prefer a motion, a second, 
and further discussion?  
 
Council preference was to keep it the same with a motion, a second, and meeting adjournment. 
 
Mayor Marquez stated that she would like to bring back Cinco de Mayo and asked for 
Council participation. 
 
Councilor Frank stated DCDA was interested in participating in Cinco de Mayo. 
 
Councilor Wildhaber inquired what the vision was for the event. 
 
Mayor Marquez stated that she was working on the details. 
 

G. INFORMATION REPORTS 
  

City Manager’s Report 
 
Rochelle Roaden stated that she had changed the City Manager update from a bulleted list to  
a narrative format and thought it would be an effective way to communicate with Council. 
 
Kiel Jenkins, City Planner accepted a position with the City of Portland effective  
February 15, 2023, and Curt Fisher is the new City Planner. 
 
Code Enforcement policies and procedures were reviewed.  
 
Rochelle Roaden stated that she applied for a Congressional Direct Spending grant for the Utility  
Bridge  but was not awarded the grant. During City Day at the Capitol, she met with representative 
Anna Scharf and presented her with information regarding the Utility Bridge and the impact it 
would have on the City's sewer rates. Representative Scharf said she would take a look at funds 
that would be available and get back to us.  
 
Stellar J. Corporation will be doing the construction on the bridge and their notice to proceed is  
March 6, 2023.  
 
The Tourism Economic Development position has been filled and hope to introduce him at the  
March 6, 2023, Council meeting. 
 
Mayor Marquez, Rochelle Roaden and the new Tourism Economic Development person met 
with Bill Stoller and his Development Team to discuss the future development in Dayton. 
 
 
 

5



 
 
The Tourism Economic Development position will run the Main Street Program, which is currently 
run by the DCDA. 
 
The DCDA is a non-profit and there are funds that they can apply for that the City cannot 
apply for, and  vice versa. 
 

 Councilor Hildebrandt stated that since he is one of the businesses in a specific development 
in Dayton, that there might be times he might need to excuse himself from a Council meeting 
due to a conflict of interest. 
 
Dayton is hosting the League of Oregon Cities Small Cities Network Meeting on Thursday, 
February 9, 2023, from 11:00 a.m.-1:00 p.m. 
 
Mid Willamette Valley COG 2023 Annual Meeting & Dinner is on Wednesday, February 
15, 2023, from 6:00 p.m.-9:00 p.m. at the Chehalem Cultural Center. 
 
The 2023 Yamhill City/County Dinner is on Thursday, February 23, 2023, from  
6:30p.m.-9:00 p.m. at the Chehalem Cultural Center. 
 

H.  ADJOURN 
 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m.  
 
 

Respectfully submitted:    APPROVED BY COUNCIL on March 06, 2023. 
        

       □ As Written □ As Amended 
 
By:   Melissa York 
 City Recorder 
    
 
       _____________________________    
       Trini Marquez, Mayor 

6



To:    Honorable Mayor and City Councilors 
 
From:   Rochelle Roaden, City Manager 
 
Issue:     Approval of Resolution 22/23-10 Declaring April 2023 National Child  
   Abuse  Prevention Month 
 
Meeting Date: March 6, 2023 
 
 
Background and Information 
 
April is National Child Abuse Prevention Month.   Juliette’s House in McMinnville has 
coordinated a month-long campaign to promote awareness in Yamhill County.  Blue pinwheels, 
blue tree bows, the wearing of blue every Friday in April, and asking all cities in the county to 
declare/reaffirm April 2023 as Child Abuse Prevention Month. 
 
Carole Joa and Katie Bowman from Juliette’s House will attend the March 6th regular session 
meeting to present this to the Council.  Attached, is their email discussing this year’s declaration 
and awareness strategies for communities, for your reference.  
 
 
 
City Manager Recommendation: I recommend approval of Resolution 22/23-10. 
 
Potential Motion to Approve: “I move to approve Resolution 22/23-10 a Resolution Declaring 
April 2023 as National Child Abuse Prevention Month.” 
 
Council Options: 
 
1 – Approve Resolution 22/23-10 as recommended. 
 
2 – Approve Resolution 22/23-10 with amendments. 
 
3 – Take no action and direct staff to do further research or provide additional options. 

7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

8



From: Katie Bowman
To: Rochelle Roaden
Subject: Council Agenda Request: National Child Abuse Prevention Month
Date: Thursday, December 22, 2022 10:30:37 AM
Attachments: Outlook-RHAg8nLcS6.png

Good morning!
 
The city of Dayton has partnered with Juliette's House in prior years to proclaim April as
National Child Abuse Prevention Month, and we invite you to do so again in 2023. Your help in
bringing awareness to this issue is deeply appreciated!
 
We would like to bring this issue to your city council agenda. What is the best way to
accomplish this? We are available to attend meetings and present information if desired, and
we also know that some cities prefer us to simply send an email outlining the request for a
proclamation. Please let us know what works best for you.
 
In addition to making a proclamation, we hope that cities will be inspired to help make the
issue of preventing child abuse visible in April, and we invite you to use Juliette's House as a
resource as well as be creative in finding awareness strategies that work best in your specific
community. We know that city staff are very busy, so perhaps volunteers could help? Here are
some ideas:
 

Attend a training: Juliette’s House offers training for adults to learn how to recognize,
report, and respond appropriately to child abuse 
Decorate with blue: hang blue lights or blue ribbons and spread the word about why
you are using blue 
Utilize the yard signs and pinwheels provided by Juliette’s House
Consider a community liaison for National Child Abuse Prevention Month to work with
Juliette’s House, pick up and distribute supplies, etc.
Article in a community newsletter, social media, etc. about National Child Abuse
Prevention Month.  Juliette’s House will provide information.
Library – include city libraries! Decorate and highlight safety books and ways kiddos can
stay safe
Involve the Chamber of Commerce and service organizations. Competitions to wear
blue on Fridays & why we are wearing blue, decorating store windows, purchasing
pinwheels to decorate with...
You will receive a digital copy of the NCAP poster. We ask that you print some and post
around town or pass digital copies on to businesses
Be creative! You know what works best in your community. Help us spread the
importance of all adults working to keep children safe from abuse. Every child has the
right to live a safe and free life.

9

mailto:katie@julietteshouse.org
mailto:rroaden@daytonoregon.gov

v,
éﬁﬁ Juliette’s House





 
Thank you!
 
Carole Joa, Program Coordinator, Stewards of Children and Katie Bowman, Prevention Support
Coordinator
Carole: (971) 237-3719 or carole@julietteshouse.org
Katie: See contact information in signature line below

 
Katie Bowman (She/Her) -Why Pronouns Matter?

Prevention Support Coordinator
503.545.6928 | kbowman@julietteshouse.org
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:
This electronic transmission and any attached documents or other writings are confidential and are for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s) identified above. This message may contain information that is privileged, confidential, or otherwise protected from
disclosure under applicable law. If you, as the receiver of this information, are not the intended recipient, or the employee, or agent
responsible for delivering the information to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use, reading, dissemination,
distribution, copying or storage of this information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this information in error, please notify the
sender by return email and delete the electronic transmission, including all attachments from your system.
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

10

mailto:carole@julietteshouse.org
https://www.mypronouns.org/


RESOLUTION No. 22/23-10 
City of Dayton, Oregon 

 
 

A Resolution Declaring April 2023 National Child Abuse Prevention Month 
 
WHEREAS, child abuse is one of our nation’s most serious public health problems with 
scientific studies documenting the link between the abuse of children and a wide range of 
medical, emotional, psychological, and behavioral disorders; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is estimated that 1 in 4 children will suffer significant abuse before the age of 18 
and in FY2021 over 160,000 contacts were made to the Oregon Child Abuse Hotline – a total of 
42,876 received reports were assigned for CPS assessment, and of all completed CPS 
assessments 7,352 were founded for abuse and involved 10,766 victims; and 
 
WHEREAS, the physical, emotional, mental and financial impact of abuse falls on children of 
all ages and abilities, who come from all economic, racial and social backgrounds; and these 
crimes affect many more family members, friends, neighbors and community; and 
 
WHEREAS, effective child abuse prevention efforts succeed because of partnerships created 
among state and local government agencies, schools, faith communities, civic and community 
organizations, law enforcement agencies, and the business community while recognizing that 
feeling connected to community can be a protective factor against child abuse; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Dayton is dedicated to stopping child abuse and supporting survivors 
and their non-offending families while working to prevent it; 
 
WHEREAS, each of us has a role to play in stopping the problem of child abuse as part of a 
solution – by learning how to prevent, recognize and report child abuse and supporting 
prevention, education and empowerment programs for children and youth. 
 
  
 The City of Dayton, therefore, resolves as follows: 
 

1) THAT April 2023 is proclaimed National Child Abuse Prevention Month; and 
 

2) THAT we reaffirm Dayton, Oregon’s commitment to creating a safer, healthier, 
more thriving community for our children and taking steps to help prevent child 
abuse through awareness efforts, prevention promotion and trainings on 
responding responsibly; and  

 
3) THAT we encourage all citizens to wear blue each Friday in April – as a public 

statement in Dayton in support of child abuse prevention; and 
 
4) THAT we encourage community members to join in awareness rallies on April 

22nd throughout Yamhill County; and 
 

11



5) THAT we call upon all citizens to invest in the lives of children by learning what 
they can do to help stop child abuse through Juliette’s House, a community 
resource, by visiting www.julietteshouse.org.  

 
           
   6) THAT this resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
  
 ADOPTED this 6th day of March 2023.   
 
 
In Favor:                                                                                   
 
Opposed:                                                                           
 
Absent:                                                                                   
 
Abstained:                                                                                     
 
 
 
 
                                                            ______________________                                               
Trini Marquez, Mayor   Date Signed 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                                                            ______________________                                            
Melissa York, City Recorder  Date of Enactment 
 
 

12



To:   Honorable Mayor and City Councilors 
 
From:   Rochelle Roaden, City Manager 
 
Issue:   FY21-22 Audit Presentation – Devan Esch, Grove, Mueller, and Swank 
 
Date:    March 6, 2023 
  
Background and Information 
 
The City’s audit for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-2022 was completed in the fall of 2022. Financials are 
included in this packet for your review.  
 
Devan Esch, with Grove, Mueller, and Swank, will attend to summarize the City’s audit and answer 
any questions the City Council may have.  
 
Unless there are any unresolved issues the City Council has with the audit, the City Council will need 
to move to accept the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Financial Statements. 
 
 
 
 
City Manager Recommendation: I recommend accepting the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Financial 
Statements. 
 
Potential Motion to Approve: “I move to accept the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Financial Statements.” 
 
Council Options: 
 
1 – Accept the Financial Statement for FY 2021-2022.  
 
2 – Take no action and direct staff to bring further information back to the City Council at a later date. 
 

13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

14



 

 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

15



 

 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
CITY OFFICIALS 
JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 Name and Address   Position   Term Expires  
 
Beth Wytoski    Mayor   December 31, 2022 
 
Rosalba Sandoval-Perez  Council President  December 31, 2022 
 
Daniel Holbrook  Council Member  December 31, 2022 
 
Kitty Mackin   Council Member  December 31, 2024 
 
Trini Marquez   Council Member  December 31, 2024 
 
Jim Maguire   Council Member  December 31, 2022 
 
Annette Frank   Council Member  December 31, 2024 
 
 

Council members receive mail at the City’s address 
 

Appointed Officials 
 

Rochelle Roaden 
City Manager 
P.O. Box 339 

Dayton, Oregon 97114 
 

Heather Martin/Paul Elsner, Beery, Elsner & Hammond, LLP 
City Attorneys * 

 
City of Newberg  

Building Official * 
 

Denny Muchmore, Westech Engineering 
City Engineer * 

 
Keil Jenkins, Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments 

City Planner * 
 
 

*Contracted Services 

16



 

 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 Independent Auditor’s Report 1-3 
 Management's Discussion and Analysis 4-9 
 Basic Financial Statements 
  Government–wide Financial Statements 
   Statement of Net Position (Modified Cash Basis) 10 
   Statement of Activities (Modified Cash Basis) 11 
  Fund Financial Statements 
   Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds-(Modified Cash Basis) 12 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances  
    Governmental Funds (Modified Cash Basis) 13 
   Statement of Fund Net Position – Proprietary Funds (Modified Cash Basis) 14 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position – Proprietary Funds 
   (Modified Cash Basis) 15 
   Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds (Modified Cash Basis) 16 
  Notes to Basic Financial Statements 17-30 
  
Supplementary Information 
  Governmental Funds  
   Reconciliation of Budgetary Funds to Reporting Funds – General Fund  
    Balance Sheet (Budgetary Basis) 31 
   Reconciliation of Budgetary Funds to Reporting Funds – General Fund 
    Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) 32 
   Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds 33 
   Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances  
      – Nonmajor Governmental Funds 34 
   Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) – 
    Budget and Actual  
     General Fund  35 
     State Revenue Sharing Fund 36 
     Transient Lodging Tax Fund 37 
     Local Option Tax Fund 38 
     American Rescue Act Fund 39 
     Street Fund   40 
     Street Capital Projects Fund 41 
     Building Reserve Fund 42 
     Park Capital Projects Fund 43 
     Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund 44 
  Proprietary Funds  
   Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances –  
    Water Operations  45 
   Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) –  
    Budget and Actual 
     Water Utility Fund 46 
     Water Utility Capital Fund 47 
   Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances –  
    Sewer Operations 48 
   Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) – 
    Budget and Actual 
     Sewer Fund   49 
     Sewer Utility Capital Fund 50 
     Debt Service Fund 51 

17



 

 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) 
 

Page 
COMPLIANCE SECTION 
 Independent Auditor’s Report Required by Oregon State Regulations      52-53 

18



 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION

19



 

 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Dayton 
Dayton, Oregon  
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinions 
 
We have audited the modified cash basis financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, and each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dayton (the City) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective modified cash basis financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2022, and the respective 
changes in financial position-modified cash basis and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting described in the summary of significant accounting 
policies in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City and to meet 
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Emphasis of Matter — Basis of Accounting 
 
We draw attention to the notes to financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial 
statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinions are not modified with 
respect to this matter. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
the modified cash basis of accounting described in the notes to the financial statements, and for determining that the 
modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial statements in the 
circumstances. Management is also responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

20



 

- 2 - 

 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.  
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:  
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related matters that we 
identified during the audit.  
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City's basic financial statements. Management’s discussion and analysis and the supplementary information, 
which are the responsibility of management, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required 
parts of the basic financial statements. 
 
The supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Management's discussion and analysis has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on such 
information. 
 
  

21



 

- 3 - 

 
Other Reporting Required by Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
Reporting Required by Oregon Minimum Standards 
 
In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report 
dated December 21, 2022, on our consideration of the City’s compliance with certain provisions of laws and 
regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing and not to 
provide an opinion on compliance. 
 

 

 

      GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C. 
      CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
 
      By:   
       Devan W. Esch, A Shareholder 
 December 21, 2022 

22



 

 
- 4 - 

City of Dayton, Oregon 
 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
The management of the City of Dayton, Oregon presents this narrative overview and analysis to facilitate both a 
short and a long-term analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is based on currently known facts, decisions, and conditions that 
existed as of the date of the independent auditor’s report. Please read it in conjunction with the City’s financial 
statements which follow this section.  
 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

2022 2021 change

Net Position 5,150,713$      3,611,370$         1,539,343$      

Change in Net Position 1,539,343        261,389              1,277,954        

Governmental Net Position 1,832,357        1,663,577           168,780          

Proprietary Net Position 3,318,356        1,947,793           1,370,563        

Change in Governmental Net Position 168,780          24,487               144,293          

Change in Proprietary Net Position 1,370,563        236,902              1,133,661        

June 30,

 
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The following discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial 
statements and other information. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 
  
 1. Government-wide financial statements 
 2. Fund financial statements 
 3. Notes to the basic financial statements 
 4. Other information 

 
Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These 
statements include: 
  
The Statement of Net Position (Modified Cash Basis). The statement of net position presents information on all of 
the assets and liabilities of the City as of the date on the statement. Net position is what remains after the 
recognized liabilities have been paid off or otherwise satisfied. Over time, increases or decreases in net position 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities (Modified Cash Basis). The statement of activities presents information showing how 
the net position of the City changed over the most recent fiscal year by tracking revenues, expenses and other 
transactions that increase or decrease net position in total. 
  

23



 

 
- 5 - 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by 
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all 
or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental 
activities of the City include the following: 
 

• General Government  
• Public Safety  
• Public Works  
• Community Development  
 

The business-type activities of the City include the following: 
 
• Water Operations 
• Sewer Operations 

 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 9 through 10 of this report. 
 
Fund financial statements – The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s 
funds, focusing on its most significant or “major” funds – not the City as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related 
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or 
objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary 
funds. 
 

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is placed on 
available financial resources, rather than upon net income determination. Therefore, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the acquisition and use of current 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it 
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial decisions. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financial decisions. 
 
The City maintains nine individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental funds Balance Sheet and in the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances for those funds that are considered significant (major) to the City taken as a whole. 
These financial statements report four major funds, the General, Transient Lodging Tax, Local Option Tax, and 
American Rescue Act funds. The State Revenue Sharing Fund has been combined with the General Fund for 
presentation purposes. Data from the other five governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided as 
supplementary information in the form of combining statements. 

 
The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 11 through 12 in the basic financial 
statements. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds. To demonstrate compliance with the 
budget, budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the General Fund, Transient Lodging Tax 
Fund, Local Option Tax Fund, American Rescue Act Fund, Street Fund, Street Capital Projects Fund, Building 
Reserve Fund, Park Capital Projects Fund, and Equipment Replacement Fund. 
 
Proprietary funds - Proprietary funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is placed on net 
income determination. All of the City’s proprietary funds are enterprise funds. Proprietary funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  

24



 

 
- 6 - 

 
The City uses proprietary funds to account for its water and sewer activity. 
 
The proprietary funds for Water Operations and Sewer Operations are considered to be major funds of the City 
and are reported separately in the proprietary financial statements in the basic financial statements.  
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for each Proprietary fund. To demonstrate compliance with the 
budget, budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the proprietary funds as other supplementary 
information. 

 
The proprietary financial statements can be found on pages 14 through 16 in the basic financial statements. 
 
Notes to the basic financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. They are an integral 
part of the basic financial statements and should be read in conjunction with them. 
 
Other information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain supplementary information, including the budgetary comparison schedules, and the combining 
nonmajor fund financial statements. 

 
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
Statement of Net Position (Modified Cash Basis) 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the 
case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $5,150,713 at the close of fiscal year 2022. 
 
A portion of the City's net position, $2,833,513, or approximately 55%, represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance is net position - unrestricted totaling 
$2,317,200, or approximately 45%. 
 

Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Current and other assets 1,833,376$   3,318,356$   5,151,732$   1,665,061$   1,947,793$   3,612,854$   

Other liabilities 1,019            -                    1,019            1,484            -                    1,484            

Net position:

Restricted 899,373        1,934,140     2,833,513     813,888        713,279        1,527,167     

Unrestricted 932,984        1,384,216     2,317,200     849,689        1,234,514     2,084,203     

Total Net Position 1,832,357$   3,318,356$   5,150,713$   1,663,577$   1,947,793$   3,611,370$   

2022 2021

 
 
  

25



 

 
- 7 - 

Statement of Activities (Modified Cash Basis) 
 
The City's net position increased $1,539,343 during fiscal 2021-2022. This increase is explained in the government 
and business-type activities as follows: 
 
Governmental activities - The City's net position increased by $168,780 from governmental activities due to an 
increase in total revenues and a decrease in total expenses.   
 

 Business- Business-
Governmental  type Governmental type

Activities  Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Revenues

Program Revenues
Fees, fines and charges for services 94,878$           1,557,995$      1,652,873$      224,054$         1,498,929$      1,722,983$         
Operating grants and contributions 536,743           -                      536,743           290,075           -                      290,075.00         
Capital grants and contributions 156,161           1,570,330        1,726,491        179,730           248,222           427,952.00         

General Revenues
Property taxes 502,730           -                      502,730           484,420           -                      484,420.00         
Transient lodging taxes 81,600             -                      81,600             68,255             -                      68,255.00           
Franchise fees 114,835           -                      114,835           108,223           -                      108,223.00         
Intergovernmental 88,601             23,249             111,850           96,757             23,249             120,006.00         
Investment earnings 10,064             8,020               18,084             10,443             8,189               18,632.00           
Miscellaneous 9,782               4,078               13,860             7,930               4,449               12,379.00           

Total Revenues 1,595,394        3,163,672        4,759,066        1,469,887        1,783,038        3,252,925           

Expenses
General government 312,971           -                      312,971           252,941           -                      252,941              
Public safety 302,311           -                      302,311           290,746           -                      290,746              
Public works 537,628           -                      537,628           704,397           -                      704,397              
Community development 241,954           -                      241,954           242,316           -                      242,316              
Water -                      950,395           950,395           -                      1,022,533        1,022,533           
Sewer -                      874,464           874,464           -                      478,603           478,603              

Total Expenses 1,394,864        1,824,859        3,219,723        1,490,400        1,501,136        2,991,536           

Transfers (31,750)           31,750             -                      45,000             (45,000)           -                         

Change in Net Position 168,780           1,370,563        1,539,343        24,487             236,902           261,389              

Net Position, beginning of year 1,663,577        1,947,793        3,611,370        1,639,090        1,710,891        3,349,981           

Net Position, end of year 1,832,357$      3,318,356$       $     5,150,713 1,663,577$      1,947,793$      3,611,370$         

2022 2021

 
 
Major Governmental Funds: 
 
General. The General fund (reported as the combination of the General fund and the State Revenue Sharing fund) is 
the primary operating fund of the City. Fund balance was $411,655 at June 30, 2022. The fund balance decreased 
by $159,382 during the year mainly due to decreased licenses and permits revenue. 
 
As a measure of the fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare total fund balance to total fund expenditures. 
Fund balance represents 56% of total General fund expenditures.  
 
Transient Lodging Tax. The Transient Lodging Tax Fund accounts for revenues from the transient lodging tax. 
Expenditure are related to tourism promotion, tourism-related facilities and related administrative costs. The fund 
balance increased by $79,744 during the year as a result of prior transient lodging taxes that were collected in the 
current year.  
 
Local Option Tax. The Local Option Tax fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to police services. 
The fund balance decreased by $30,187 as a result of revenues being nearly equal to expenses during the year. 

26



 

 
- 8 - 

American Rescue Act. The American Rescue Act Fund accounts for revenues received through the American 
Rescue Plan Act of 2021. The money is used to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic and its negative economic 
impacts. The fund balance increased by $184,320 as a result of the ARPA funds received.  
 
Business-type activities - The City's net position increased by $1,370,563 from business-type activities. This 
increase was due to increases in capital grants received. 
 
Major Proprietary Funds: 
 
Water Operations. Fund net position increased by $622,143 during the year due to increased capital grant revenues. 
 
Sewer Operations.  Fund net position increased by $730,670 as a result of decreased capital acquisitions and 
transfers to other funds. 
 
Debt Service. Fund net position increased by $17,750 as a result of decreased principal payments. 
 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The City does not maintain historical cost and depreciation records for capital assets including infrastructure. 
Therefore, no information for capital assets is presented in the financial statements. 
 
Debt  
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had a total of $4,445,865 in debt outstanding. 

 
The City's debt is for business-type activities and includes $2,224,724 in outstanding water system improvement 
loans from Oregon Business Development Department, and $2,221,141 in an outstanding USDA loan. The loans 
are paid from net revenues of the water and sewer systems. 
 
State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a government entity may issue up to 3 percent of its total 
assessed valuation. The City currently has no general obligation debt. 
 

2022 2021 
OBDD loans 2,224,724$   2,362,067$   
USDA loan 2,221,141     2,260,995     

4,445,865$   4,623,062$   

Business-type Activities

 
 

Additional information on the City's debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 
 
Current Year General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
There was one supplemental budget adopted for the General fund during the current fiscal year which increased 
appropriations for Library, Planning, and Building capital expenditures. 
 
  

27



 

 
- 9 - 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 
 
During the preparation of the budget for the ensuing fiscal year, the long-term impacts of the local economy were 
examined in conjunction with business decisions made by the City. The following are the major assumptions used 
in developing the FY 2023 budget: 

 
• The City's population will not grow significantly in 2023. 
• The City's tax rate is estimated to be 100% of the City's permanent levy rate of $1.7057 for general 

operations and $1.85 for the local option tax levy. 
• Assessed values, the basis of property tax revenues, will grow to 3% due to market conditions. 
• Interest rates on investments will be similar to 2022. 

 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for those with an interest in the 
government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report should be addressed to 
Rochelle Roaden, City Manager at P.O. Box 339, Dayton, Oregon 97114. 

28



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 10 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (MODIFIED CASH BASIS) 
JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 

 
  

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1,833,376$           3,318,356$           5,151,732$           

LIABILITIES

Payroll withholdings 1,019                   -                         1,019                   

NET POSITION

Restricted for:
Debt service -                         82,248                 82,248                 
Public safety 84,600                 -                         84,600                 
Streets 515,027               -                         515,027               
Community development 299,746               -                         299,746               
Capital acquisitions -                         1,755,467             1,755,467             
Customer deposits -                         96,425                 96,425                 

Unrestricted 932,984               1,384,216             2,317,200             

Total Net Position 1,832,357$           3,318,356$           5,150,713$           

30



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 D

A
Y

T
O

N
, O

R
E

G
O

N
ST

A
TE

M
E

N
T 

O
F

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S 
(M

O
D

IF
IE

D
 C

A
SH

 B
A

SI
S)

Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
E

D
 J

U
N

E
 3

0,
 2

02
2

F
ee

s,
 F

in
es

O
pe

ra
ti

n
g

C
ap

it
al

 
an

d 
C

h
ar

ge
s

G
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
G

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l

B
u

si
n

es
s-

ty
pe

E
xp

en
se

s
fo

r 
S

er
vi

ce
s

C
on

tr
ib

u
ti

on
s

C
on

tr
ib

u
ti

on
s

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

T
ot

al
F

U
N

C
T

IO
N

S/
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

S
G

ov
er

n
m

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
it

ie
s:

G
en

er
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t

31
2,

97
1

$ 
   

   
3,

02
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
30

4,
99

5
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

(4
,9

50
)

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(4

,9
50

)
$ 

   
   

  
P

ub
li

c 
sa

fe
ty

30
2,

31
1

   
   

   
18

,9
21

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(2
83

,3
90

)
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

83
,3

90
)

   
   

 
P

ub
li

c 
w

or
ks

53
7,

62
8

   
   

   
52

,5
64

   
   

   
  

21
7,

37
9

   
   

   
15

5,
66

1
   

   
   

(1
12

,0
24

)
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

12
,0

24
)

   
   

 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
24

1,
95

4
   

   
   

20
,3

67
   

   
   

  
14

,3
69

   
   

   
  

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
06

,7
18

)
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

06
,7

18
)

   
   

 

T
ot

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

1,
39

4,
86

4
   

   
94

,8
78

   
   

   
  

53
6,

74
3

   
   

   
15

6,
16

1
   

   
   

(6
07

,0
82

)
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(6

07
,0

82
)

   
   

 

B
u

si
n

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s:

W
at

er
95

0,
39

5
   

   
   

1,
02

6,
21

4
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
42

1,
51

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

49
7,

32
9

   
   

   
  

49
7,

32
9

   
   

   
S

ew
er

87
4,

46
4

   
   

   
53

1,
78

1
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
14

8,
82

0
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
80

6,
13

7
   

   
   

  
80

6,
13

7
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 B

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s

1,
82

4,
85

9
   

   
1,

55
7,

99
5

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
57

0,
33

0
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

30
3,

46
6

   
   

  
1,

30
3,

46
6

   
   

T
ot

al
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

3,
21

9,
72

3
$ 

   
1,

65
2,

87
3

$ 
   

53
6,

74
3

$ 
   

   
1,

72
6,

49
1

$ 
   

(6
07

,0
82

)
   

   
 

1,
30

3,
46

6
   

   
  

69
6,

38
4

   
   

   

G
en

er
al

 R
ev

en
u

es
:

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

xe
s

50
2,

73
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
2,

73
0

   
   

   
T

ra
ns

ie
nt

 lo
dg

in
g 

ta
xe

s
81

,6
00

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
81

,6
00

   
   

   
  

F
ra

nc
hi

se
 ta

xe
s

11
4,

83
5

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
4,

83
5

   
   

   
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

88
,6

01
   

   
   

  
23

,2
49

   
   

   
   

 
11

1,
85

0
   

   
   

In
ve

st
m

en
t e

ar
ni

ng
s

10
,0

64
   

   
   

  
8,

02
0

   
   

   
   

   
18

,0
84

   
   

   
  

M
is

ce
ll

an
eo

us
9,

78
2

   
   

   
   

 
4,

07
8

13
,8

60
   

   
   

  

T
ot

al
 G

en
er

al
 R

ev
en

ue
s

80
7,

61
2

   
   

   
35

,3
47

   
   

   
   

 
84

2,
95

9
   

   
   

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
(3

1,
75

0)
   

   
   

31
,7

50
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
h

an
ge

 in
 n

et
 p

os
it

io
n

16
8,

78
0

   
   

   
1,

37
0,

56
3

   
   

  
1,

53
9,

34
3

   
   

N
et

 P
os

it
io

n
 -

 b
eg

in
n

in
g 

of
 y

ea
r

1,
66

3,
57

7
   

   
1,

94
7,

79
3

   
   

  
3,

61
1,

37
0

   
   

N
et

 P
os

it
io

n
 -

 e
n

d 
of

 y
ea

r
1,

83
2,

35
7

$ 
   

3,
31

8,
35

6
$ 

   
  

5,
15

0,
71

3
$ 

   

N
et

 (
E

xp
en

se
s)

 R
ev

en
u

es
 

P
ro

gr
am

 R
ev

en
u

es
an

d 
C

h
an

ge
s 

in
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

Th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

ar
e 

an
 in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.
- 

11
 -

31



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 12 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (MODIFIED CASH BASIS) 
JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 

General
Transient 

Lodging Tax
Local Option 

Tax

American 
Rescue Plan 

Act

Other 
Governmental 

Funds Total
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 412,674$        391,687$        84,600$          184,320$        760,095$        1,833,376$     

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities

Payroll withholdings 1,019$           -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  1,019$           

Fund Balance
Restricted for:

Public safety -                    -                    84,600           -                    -                    84,600           
Streets -                    -                    -                    -                    515,027          515,027          
Community development -                    232,831          -                    -                    66,915           299,746          

Committed to:
Capital acquisitions -                    -                    -                    -                    178,153          178,153          
Community development -                    158,856          -                    -                    -                    158,856          

Unassigned 411,655          -                    -                    184,320          -                    595,975          

Total Fund Balance 411,655          391,687          84,600           184,320          760,095          1,832,357       

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 412,674$        391,687$        84,600$          184,320$        760,095$        1,833,376$     

Special Revenue

32



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 13 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES  –  
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (MODIFIED CASH BASIS) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 

General Fund
Transient 

Lodging Tax
Local Option 

Tax

American 
Rescue Plan 

Act

Other 
Governmental 

Funds Total
REVENUES

Taxes and assessments 246,338$        81,600$          256,392$        -$                  -$                  584,330$        
Licenses and permits 170,424          -                    -                    -                    6,125             176,549          
Intergovernmental 112,554          -                    -                    304,570          367,415          784,539          
Fines and forfeitures 104                -                    9,336             -                    -                    9,440             
Miscellaneous 33,888           227                1,397             -                    5,024             40,536           

 
Total Revenues 563,308          81,827           267,125          304,570          378,564          1,595,394       

EXPENDITURES

Current
   General government 250,845          -                    -                    -                    -                    250,845          
   Public safety -                    -                    301,695          -                    -                    301,695          
   Public works 194,291          -                    -                    -                    57,385           251,676          
   Community development 291,054          2,083             -                    -                    57,970           351,107          
Capital acquisitions -                    -                    617                -                    238,924          239,541          

Total Expenditures 736,190          2,083             302,312          -                    354,279          1,394,864       

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (172,882)        79,744           (35,187)          304,570          24,285           200,530          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 38,500           -                    5,000             -                    171,000          214,500          
Transfers out (25,000)          -                    -                    (120,250)        (101,000)        (246,250)        

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 13,500           -                    5,000             (120,250)        70,000           (31,750)          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (159,382)        79,744           (30,187)          184,320          94,285           168,780          

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 571,037          311,943          114,787          -                    665,810          1,663,577       

FUND BALANCE, end of year 411,655$        391,687$        84,600$          184,320$        760,095$        1,832,357$     

Special Revenue

33



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 14 - 

 
CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUNDS (MODIFIED CASH BASIS) 
JUNE 30, 2022 
 

  

Water
Operations

Sewer
Operations Debt Service Total

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,533,082$     1,457,952$     327,322$        3,318,356$     

FUND NET POSITION

Restricted for:
Customer deposits 62,677$          33,748$          -$                  96,425$          
Debt service -                    -                    82,248           82,248           
Capital acquisitions 756,793          998,674          -                    1,755,467       

Unrestricted 713,612          425,530          245,074          1,384,216       

Total Fund Net Position 1,533,082$     1,457,952$     327,322$        3,318,356$     

34



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 15 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION  –  
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (MODIFIED CASH BASIS) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 

 Water
Operations 

 Sewer
Operations Debt Service Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 1,026,214$     531,781$        -$                  1,557,995$     
Miscellaneous 2,430             1,648             -                    4,078             

Total Operating Revenues 1,028,644       533,429         -                    1,562,073       

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 307,778         217,714         -                    525,492         
Materials and services 251,423         148,276         -                    399,699         

Total Operating Expenses 559,201         365,990         -                    925,191         

OPERATING INCOME 469,443         167,439         -                    636,882         

NONOPERATING REVENUES/EXPENSES
Intergovernmental 400,000         1,111,000       23,249           1,534,249       
Capital acquisitions (147,983)        (508,474)        -                    (656,457)        
Debt service

Principal -                    -                    (177,197)        (177,197)        
Interest -                    -                    (66,014)          (66,014)          

Interest revenue 3,673             2,635             1,712             8,020             

Total Nonoperating Revenues/Expenses 255,690         605,161         (218,250)        642,601         

NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 725,133         772,600         (218,250)        1,279,483       
AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Capital contributions 21,510           37,820           -                    59,330           
Transfers in 55,500           31,250           236,000         322,750         
Transfers out (180,000)        (111,000)        -                    (291,000)        

CHANGE IN FUND NET POSITION 622,143         730,670         17,750           1,370,563       

FUND NET POSITION, beginning of year 910,939         727,282         309,572         1,947,793       

FUND NET POSITION (Deficit), end of year 1,533,082$     1,457,952$     327,322$        3,318,356$     

35



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 16 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – PROPRIETARY FUNDS (MODIFIED CASH BASIS) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
 

Water
Operations

Sewer
Operations Debt Service Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers 1,028,644$   533,429$      -$                1,562,073$   
Cash paid to employees and others for salaries and benefits (307,778)      (217,714)      -                  (525,492)      

Cash paid to suppliers and others (251,423)      (148,276)      -                  (399,699)      

   Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 469,443        167,439        -                  636,882        

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING
   ACTIVITIES

Transfers in 55,500         31,250         236,000        322,750        
Transfers out (180,000)      (111,000)      -                  (291,000)      

  Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Non-Capital (124,500)      (79,750)        236,000        31,750         

      Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
   FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Intergovernmental revenue 400,000        1,111,000     23,249         1,534,249     
Purchase of capital assets (147,983)      (508,474)      -                  (656,457)      

Interest paid on debt -                  -                  (66,014)        (66,014)        

Principal paid on debt -                  -                  (177,197)      (177,197)      

Capital contributions 21,510         37,820         -                  59,330         

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related 273,527        640,346        (219,962)      693,911        
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 3,673           2,635           1,712           8,020           

  Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 622,143        730,670        17,750         1,370,563     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of year 910,939        727,282        309,572 1,947,793     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of year 1,533,082$   1,457,952$   327,322$      3,318,356$   

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income 469,443$      167,439$      -$                636,882$      

   Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 469,443$      167,439$      -$                636,882$      

36



 

 
- 17 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The City of Dayton, Oregon was incorporated in 1880 under the provisions of the Oregon Statutes. The City is 
governed by a city council and mayor who are responsible for rulemaking, budget preparation and enforcement, 
expenditure approval, and hiring of the City management personnel. The mayor and six council members are 
elected by vote of the general public.  
 
There are certain governmental agencies and various service districts which provide services within the City. 
These agencies have independently elected governing boards and the City is not financially accountable for these 
organizations. Therefore, financial information for these agencies is not included in the accompanying basic 
financial statements. 
 
As discussed further under Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting, these financial statements are presented 
on a modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). These modified cash basis financial statements generally meet the presentation and disclosure 
requirements applicable to GAAP, in substance, but are limited to the elements presented in the financial 
statements and the constraints of the measurement and recognition criteria of the modified cash basis of 
accounting. 
 

Basic Financial Statements 
 
Basic financial statements are presented at both the government-wide and fund financial level. Both levels of 
statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type. Governmental activities, 
which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
Government-wide financial statements display information about the reporting government as a whole. For the 
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. These statements focus on 
the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in aggregate financial position resulting from the 
activities of the fiscal period. These aggregated statements consist of the Statement of Net Position (Modified 
Cash Basis) and the Statement of Activities (Modified Cash Basis). 
 
The Statement of Net Position (Modified Cash Basis) presents all the recorded assets and liabilities of the City. 
Net position, representing assets less liabilities, is shown in two components: restricted for special purposes, 
amounts which must be spent in accordance with legal restrictions; and unrestricted, the amount available for 
ongoing City activities. 
 
The Statement of Activities (Modified Cash Basis) demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, 
and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Fund financial statements display information at the individual fund level. Each fund is considered to be a 
separate accounting entity. Funds are classified and summarized as governmental, proprietary, or fiduciary. 
Currently, the City has governmental (general, special revenue and capital projects) and proprietary type 
(enterprise) funds. Major individual governmental funds, and major individual proprietary funds are reported 

37



 

 
- 18 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
as separate columns in the fund financial statements. Non-major funds are consolidated into a single column 
within each fund type in the financial section of the basic financial statements and are detailed in the 
supplementary information.  
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing 
a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and 
expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements. 
 
Government accounting standards set forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or 
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the government and proprietary combined) for the 
determination of major funds.  
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
General Fund 
 
This fund accounts for the financial operations of the City not accounted for in any other fund. Principal 
sources of revenues are property taxes, licenses and permits, franchise fees and State shared revenues. 
Primary expenditures are for general administration. 
 
State Revenue Sharing Fund 
 
This fund accounts for state fund resources and expenditures are for general operations. This fund is included 
with the General Fund for reporting purposes. 
 
Transient Lodging Tax Fund 
 
This fund accounts for transient lodging taxes received that will be spent on tourism promotion, tourism-
related facilities and related administrative costs, with some restrictions.  
 
Local Option Tax Fund 
 
This fund accounts for the property tax revenue received from a special levy approved by the voters. The 
money is used primarily to pay for police services. 
 
American Rescue Plan Act Fund 
 
This fund accounts for revenues received through the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. The money is used 
to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic and its negative economic impacts. 
 
 

38



 

 
- 19 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 

The City reports the following nonmajor governmental funds: 
 

Street Fund 
 
This fund accounts for street maintenance and improvements. The primary source of revenues is from motor 
vehicle fuel taxes and expenditures are for street maintenance and improvements. 
 
Street Capital Projects Fund 
 
This fund accounts for money set aside for street improvements. The principal revenues are from transfers in 
and the primary expenditures are for street improvements. 

 
Building Reserve Fund 
 
This fund accounts for money set aside for building improvements. The principal revenues are from transfers 
in and primary expenditures are for building improvements.  

 
Park Capital Projects Fund 
 
This fund accounts for money set aside for park improvements. The principal revenues are transfers from the 
General Fund and primary expenditures are for park projects. 
 
Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund 
 
This fund accounts for money set aside for equipment purchases. The principal revenues are from transfers 
from the General Fund and primary expenditures are for equipment purchases.  

 
The City reports the following proprietary operations as major. They are used to account for the acquisition, 
operation, and maintenance of the sewer and water systems. These funds are entirely or predominantly self-
supported through user charges to customers. 

 
Water Operations 
 
This fund accounts for the operations, maintenance, capital construction projects and payments of principal 
and interest on loans for the water system, which are funded through utility fees and debt proceeds. 
 
Sewer Operations 
 
This fund accounts for the operations, maintenance, capital construction projects and payments of principal 
and interest on loans for the sewer system, which are funded through utility fees and debt proceeds. 
 
Debt Service Fund 
 
This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and payment of principal and interest on loans. Interest 
earnings and transfers from other funds are the primary source of revenues.  
 

 

39



 

 
- 20 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
Fund Balance 
 
In governmental funds, the City’s policy is to first apply the expenditure toward restricted fund balance and 
then to other, less-restrictive classifications – committed and then assigned fund balances before using 
unassigned fund balances.  
 
Fund balance is reported as nonspendable when the resources cannot be spent because they are either in a 
nonspendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Resources in nonspendable form 
include inventories, prepaids and deposits, and assets held for resale. 
 
Fund balance is reported as restricted when the constraints placed on the use of resources are either: (a) 
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Fund balance is reported as committed when the City Council takes formal action that places specific 
constraints on how the resources may be used. The City Council can modify or rescind the commitment at any 
time through taking a similar formal action. 
 
Resources that are constrained by the City’s intent to use them for a specific purpose, but are neither restricted 
nor committed, are reported as assigned fund balance. Intent is expressed when the City Council approves 
which resources should be “reserved” during the adoption of the annual budget. The City’s City Manager uses 
that information to determine whether those resources should be classified as assigned or unassigned for 
presentation in the City’s Annual Financial Report. 
 
Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. This classification represents fund 
balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned within the General Fund. This classification is also 
used to report any negative fund balance amounts in other governmental funds.  
 
When expenditures are paid for purposes in which both net position - restricted and net position - unrestricted 
are available, the City deems net position - restricted to be spent first. 
 
Definitions of Governmental Fund Types 
 
The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources not accounted for in another fund. 
 
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. The 
term “proceeds of specific revenues sources” means that the revenue sources for the fund must be from 
restricted or committed sources, specifically that a substantial portion of the revenue must be from these sources 
and be expended in accordance with those requirements. Budgetary Special Revenue Funds whose primary 
source of funding is transfers from the General Fund must be reported as part of the General Fund. Therefore, in 
the Governmental Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, 
the State Revenue Sharing Fund has been combined with the General Fund. 
 
Capital Projects Funds are utilized to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of capital equipment and facilities. 

 
 

  

40



 

 
- 21 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe what transactions or events are recorded within the various 
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when and how transactions or events are recorded, regardless 
of the measurement focus applied.  

 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position (Modified Cash Basis) and Statement of Activities 
(Modified Cash Basis), both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic 
resource measurement focus, within the limitations of the modified cash basis of accounting, as defined below. 
 
In the fund financial statements, the current financial resources measurement focus or the economic resources 
measurement focus is applied to the modified cash basis of accounting, is used as appropriate: 

 
a. All governmental funds utilize a current financial resources measurement focus within the limitations of 

the modified cash basis of accounting. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included 
on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable 
financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available 
spendable financial resources at the end of the period. 

b. The proprietary funds utilize an economic resource measurement focus within the limitations of the 
modified cash basis of accounting. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the 
determination of operating income, change in net position (or cost recovery), net financial position, and 
cash flows. All assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows (whether current or noncurrent 
or financial or nonfinancial) associated with their activities are generally reported within the limitations 
of the modified cash basis of accounting. 

 
The financial statements are presented on a modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting 
other than GAAP as established by the GASB. This basis of accounting involves modifications to the cash basis 
of accounting to report in the statements of net position or balance sheets cash transactions or events that 
provide a benefit or result in an obligation that covers a period greater than the period in which the cash 
transaction or event occurred. Such reported balances include: 

 
1. Interfund receivables and payables that are temporary borrowing and result from transactions involving 

cash or cash equivalents are recognized. 
2. Assets that normally convert to cash or cash equivalents (e.g., certificates of deposit, external cash pools, 

and marketable investments) that arise from transactions and events involving cash or cash equivalents 
are recognized. 

3. Liabilities for cash (or cash equivalents) held on behalf of others or held in escrow are recognized. 
 

The modified cash basis of accounting differs from GAAP primarily because certain assets and their related 
revenues (such as accounts receivable and revenue for billed or provided services not yet collected and other 
accrued revenue and receivables) and certain liabilities and their related expenses or expenditures (such as 
accounts payable and expenses for goods and services received but not yet paid and other accrued expenses and 
liabilities) are not recorded in these financial statements. In addition, other economic assets, deferred outflows, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows that do not arise from a cash transaction or event are not reported, and the 
measurement of reported assets and liabilities does not involve adjustment to fair value. Additionally, long-term 
liabilities such as debt are only reported in the notes to the financial statements. 

 
 

41



 

 
- 22 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 

If the City utilized the basis of accounting recognized as generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
fund financial statements for the governmental funds would use the modified accrual basis of accounting, and 
the fund financial statements for the proprietary funds would use the accrual basis of accounting. All 
government-wide financial statements would be presented on the accrual basis of accounting. 

 
The City’s policy, although not in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, is acceptable under Oregon Law (ORS 294.333), which leaves the selection of the method of 
accounting to the discretion of the municipal corporation.  

 
Proprietary funds distinguish between operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues 
and expenses result from providing services to customers in connection with ongoing utility operations. The 
principal operating revenues are charges to customers for service. Operating expenses include payroll and 
related costs, and materials and supplies. All revenues not considered operating are reported as nonoperating. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The City maintains cash and cash equivalents in a common pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund 
type’s portion of this pool is displayed in the financial statements as cash and cash equivalents. The City 
considers cash on hand, demand deposits and savings accounts, and short-term investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition to be cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Oregon Revised Statutes authorize the City to invest in certificates of deposit, savings accounts, bank 
repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances, general obligations of U.S. Government and its agencies, certain 
bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities and the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool, 
among others. 

 
Investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. 
 
Property Taxes 
 
Property taxes are levied by the County Assessor and collected by the County Tax Collector. The taxes are 
levied and become a lien as of July 1. They may be paid in three installments payable in equal payments due 
November 15, February 15, and May 15. The City’s property tax collection records show that most of the 
property taxes due are collected during the year of levy and delinquent taxes are collected in the next few years. 

 
Capital Assets 

 
The City does not maintain historical cost or depreciation records for capital assets. Therefore, capital assets are 
not reported in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
Long-term debt is presented only in the notes to the financial statements. Payments of principal and interest are 
recorded as expenditures / expenses when paid. 
 

42



 

 
- 23 - 

 CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Accrued Compensated Absences 
 
Accumulated unpaid vacation and comp time pay is not accrued. Earned but unpaid sick pay is recorded as an 
expenditure when paid. The amount payable for accumulated vacation and comp time at June 30, 2022 was 
$42,797. 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
 
The City adopts the budget on an object basis (personnel services, materials and services, capital outlay, debt 
service), for all funds except the General fund, where the budget is adopted on a departmental basis. Therefore, 
cash expenditures of a fund may not legally exceed that object’s appropriations for cash expenditures. The City 
Council may amend the budget to expend unforeseen revenues by supplemental appropriations. Appropriations 
lapse at year-end and may not be carried over. The City does not use encumbrance accounting. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of basic financial statements, in conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the year ended June 30, 2022. Actual results may differ from 
such estimates. 
 
 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

 
Deposits 
 
At year end, the book balance of the City’s bank deposits (checking account) was $300,272 and the bank balance 
was $282,743. The difference is due to transactions in process. Bank deposits are secured to legal limits by 
federal deposit insurance. All deposits not covered by FDIC insurance are covered by the Public Funds 
Collateralization Program (PFCP) of the State of Oregon.  

Cash
Cash on hand $ 350
Deposits with financial institutions 300,258

Investments
Local Government Investment Pool 4,851,124

$ 5,151,732     

43



 

 
- 24 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 

 
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits 
 
This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned. The Federal 
Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provides insurance for the City’s deposits with financial institutions 
for up to $250,000 for the aggregate of all demand deposits and the aggregate of all time deposit and savings 
accounts at each institution. Deposits in excess of FDIC coverage are with institutions participating in the 
Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP). The PFCP is a shared liability structure for 
participating bank depositories, better protecting public funds though still not guaranteeing that all funds are 
100% protected. Barring any exceptions, a bank depository is required to pledge collateral valued at least 10% 
of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are well capitalized, 25% of their quarter-end public fund 
deposits if they are adequately capitalized or 110% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are 
undercapitalized or assigned to pledge 110% by the Office of the State Treasurer. In the event of a bank failure, 
the entire pool of collateral pledged by all qualified Oregon public funds bank depositories is available to repay 
deposits of public funds of government entities. As of June 30, 2022, $32,743 of the City’s bank balances was 
covered by the PFCP. 
 
Custodial Risk – Local Government Investment Pool 
 
For the LGIP, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to 
recover the value of its investments or collateralized securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 
The City’s investment policy limits the types of investments that may be held and does not allow securities to 
be held by the counterparty. 

 
The LGIP is administered by the Oregon State Treasury with the advice of other state agencies and is not 
registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. The LGIP is an open-ended no-load diversified 
portfolio offered to any agency, political subdivision, or public corporation of the state that by law is made the 
custodian of, or has control of any fund. The LGIP is commingled with the State's short-term funds. In seeking 
to best serve local governments of Oregon, the Oregon Legislature established the Oregon Short Term Fund 
Board, which has established diversification percentages and specifies the types and maturities of the 
investments. The purpose of the Board is to advise the Oregon State Treasury in the management and 
investment of the LGIP. These investments within the LGIP must be invested and managed as a prudent 
investor would, exercising reasonable care, skill and caution. Professional standards indicate that the 
investments in external investment pools are not subject to custodial risk because they are not evidenced by 
securities that exist in physical or book entry form. Nevertheless, management does not believe that there is any 
substantial custodial risk related to investments in the LGIP. 
 
Local Government Investment Pool 
 
The State Treasurer of the State of Oregon maintains the Oregon Short Term Fund, of which the Local 
Government Investment Pool is part. Participation by local governments is voluntary. The State of Oregon 
investment policies are governed by statute and the Oregon Investment Council. In accordance with Oregon 
Statutes, the investment funds are invested as a prudent investor would do, exercising reasonable care, skill and 
caution. The Oregon Short Term Fund is the LGIP for local governments and was established by the State 
Treasurer. It was created to meet the financial and administrative responsibilities of federal arbitrage 
regulations. The investments are regulated by the Oregon Short Term Fund Board and approved by the Oregon 
Investment Council (ORS 294.805 to 294.895). At June 30, 2022, the fair value of the position in the Oregon 
State Treasurer’s Short Term Investment Pool was approximately equal to the value of the pool shares. The 
investment in the Oregon Short Term Fund is not subject to risk evaluation. LGIP is not rated for credit quality. 

44



 

 
- 25 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 

 
Local Government Investment Pool (Continued) 
 
Separate financial statements for the Oregon Short Term Fund are available from the Oregon State Treasurer. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair value of its 
investments by limiting its investments to the LGIP. 

 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
As a result of the use of the modified cash basis of accounting in this report, obligations related to long-term debt 
and other obligations are not reported as liabilities in the financial statements. Long-term debt transactions for the 
year were as follows: 
 

 
 

In relation to the 2005 Infrastructure Finance Authority borrowing, the City of Dayton made a loan to the City of 
Lafayette in the amount of $600,000, which is collateralized by wells. The loan is to be repaid in annual 
installments of $23,249 including interest at 1% through November 2033. The balance receivable at June 30, 
2022 was $261,666. 
 
Loans payable – Business Type Activities 
 
Infrastructure Finance Authority (OBDD): On September 30, 2002 the City entered into a loan agreement with 
the Oregon Business Development Division for water system improvements. The loan was for $3,383,000 and 
calls for annual payments of $143,333. The loan bears interest at 1%. Final maturity is December 1, 2032. In the 
event of default OBDD may declare all amounts immediately due and payable and pursue any remedies that are 
legally available.  

Direct Placement - Business-type activities

Note payable to Infrastructure Finance

Authority (Oregon Business

Development Department) $ 1,987,538  $ (123,458)    $ 1,864,080  $ 124,692     

Note payable to Infrastructure Finance

Authority (Oregon Business

Development Department) 374,529     (13,885)      360,644     14,024       

USDA Sewer Improvement Loan 2,260,995  (39,854)      2,221,141  40,602       

$ 4,623,062  $ (177,197)    $ 4,445,865  $ 179,318     

July 1, Due Within

One Year2021 During Year 2022

Redeemed June 30,

OutstandingOutstanding Matured/

45



 

 
- 26 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
Infrastructure Finance Authority (OBDD): On November 18, 2014 the City entered into a loan agreement with 
the Oregon Business Development Division for water system improvements. The loan was for $910,000 with a 
$455,000 conditional forgivable portion which was forgiven in June 2015. The loan calls for annual payments of 
$17,630 and bears interest at 1%. Final maturity is December 1, 2044. In the event of default OBDD may declare 
all amounts immediately due and payable and pursue any remedies that are legally available. 
 
USDA Sewer Improvement Loan: On December 6, 2019 the City refinanced the existing loan with Oregon DEQ 
in the amount of $2,300,000 through the U.S. Department of Agriculture. The loan will bear interest at 1.874% 
and will be repaid in equal installments over 40 years. In the event of default USDA may pursue any remedies 
that are legally available. 
 
Future maturities of unmatured principal and interest for the fiscal years ending June 30 are as follows: 

 

 
 
PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan Description - City employees are provided pension benefits through the Oregon Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS). PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan for units of 
state and local government in Oregon, containing multiple actuarial pools. Benefits are established and amended 
by the Oregon State Legislature pursuant to ORS Chapters 238 and 238A. The legislature has delegated the 
authority to administer and manage PERS to the Public Employees Retirement Board. PERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that can be found at: https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Financial-
Information.aspx 
 
  

Ending

2023 $ 179,318 $ 63,893 $ 243,211         
2024 181,466 61,745 243,211         
2025 183,534 59,678 243,212         
2026 185,846 57,366 243,212         
2027 188,079 55,132 243,211         

2028-2032 974,849         241,209    1,216,058       
2033-2037 892,133         180,897    1,073,030       
2038-2042 361,428         137,962    499,390         
2043-2047 357,336         106,741    464,077         
2048-2052 335,232         76,008      411,240         
2053-2057 367,857         43,383      411,240         
2058-2061 238,788         9,050        247,838         

$ 4,445,865       $ 1,093,065  $ 5,538,930       

Total

Fiscal Year

June 30, Principal Interest

46



 

 
- 27 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Benefits Provided - PERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits which vary based on a qualified 
employee’s hiring date and employment class (general service or police/fire). All City employees are eligible to 
participate after six months of covered employment. Details applicable to police/fire employees are noted in 
[square brackets] where different. 
 
The Tier One/Tier Two Retirement Plan applies to qualifying employees hired before August 29, 2003 and is 
closed to new members.  

 
Monthly retirement benefits are based on final 3-year average salary multiplied by years of service and a factor of 
1.67% [2.00%]. Benefits may also be based on a money match computation, or formula plus annuity (for 
members contributing before August 21, 1981), if a greater benefit results. Employees are fully vested after 
making contributions in each of five calendar years, and are eligible to retire at age 55 [50]. Tier One benefits are 
reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 58 [55] with less than 30 [25] years of service; Tier Two benefits are 
reduced for retirement prior to age 60. 
 
Employees are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of service; 10 years of service is 
required for nonservice-related benefits. Disability benefits are determined in the same manner as retirement 
benefits with service time computed to age 58 [55]. 
 
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the member’s account 
balance. The beneficiary may also receive a matching lump-sum payment from employer funds if the member 
was in covered employment at the time of death, or if the member died less than 120 days after termination, while 
on official leave of absence, or as a result of a job-related injury. 
 
Monthly benefits are subject to annual cost-of-living adjustments (COLA). For benefits earned after the relevant 
effective dates, the COLA is subject to a cap of 1.25% on the first $60,000 of annual benefits and 0.15% 
thereafter (ORS 238.360). 
 
The Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP) applies to qualifying employees hired on or after August 
29, 2003.  

 
Monthly retirement benefits are based on final 3-year average salary multiplied by years of service and a factor of 
1.50% [1.80%]. Employees are fully vested after completing 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, 
and are eligible to retire at age 58 [53] with 30 [25] years of service, or at age 65 [60] otherwise. 
 
Employees are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of service; 10 years of service is 
required for nonservice-related benefits. The benefit is 45% of the employee’s salary during the last full month of 
employment before the disability occurred. 
 
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a monthly benefit equal to 50% of the 
retirement benefit that would have been paid to the member. 
 
Monthly benefits are subject to annual cost-of-living adjustments (COLA). For benefits earned after the relevant 
effective dates, the COLA is subject to a cap of 1.25% on the first $60,000 of annual benefits and 0.15% 
thereafter (ORS 238A.210).  

47



 

 
- 28 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Contribution Requirements – As a participating employer, the City is required to make monthly contributions to 
PERS based on actuarially determined percentages of covered payroll. Rates in effect for fiscal year 2022 were 
19.37% for Tier One/Tier Two employees, 15.52% for OPSRP general service employees, and 19.88% for 
OPSRP police/fire employees. The City’s total contributions to PERS were $103,426 for fiscal year ended June 
30, 2022. 
 
Contribution requirements are established by Oregon statute and may be amended by an act of the Oregon State 
Legislature. Employer contribution rates for fiscal year 2022 were based on the December 31, 2019 actuarial 
valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. It is important to note that the actuarial valuations 
used for rate setting are based on different methods and assumptions than those used for financial reporting which 
are described later in this note. 
 
Employee contributions are set by statute at 6% of salary and are remitted by participating employers, who may 
agree to make employee contributions on the employee’s behalf. Prior to January 1, 2004, employee contributions 
were credited to the defined benefit pension plan. Beginning January 1, 2004, all employee contributions were 
placed in the OPSRP Individual Account Program (IAP), a defined contribution pension plan described further at 
the end of this note. 

 
Pension Assets/Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Pension-Related Deferrals – At June 30, 2022, the City reported 
a net pension liability of $522,276 as its proportionate share of the collective net pension liability for PERS, 
measured as of June 30, 2021. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was based on a 
December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation, rolled forward to the measurement date. The City’s proportion of the net 
pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to PERS relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating employers, as actuarially determined. The City’s proportion was 
0.004364% as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date, compared to 0.003875% as of June 30, 2020. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – The total pension liability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the entry age normal method and the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement: inflation rate of 2.40%, projected salary increases of 3.40%, investment rate of 
return of 6.90%, and mortality rates based on the Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with 
Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs. These assumptions were based 
on the results of the December 31, 2019 actuarial experience study. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was developed by combining estimated rates 
of return for each major asset class weighted by target asset allocation percentages and adjusting for inflation.  
 
Target allocations and estimated geometric rates of return for each major asset class are available in the PERS 
publicly available financial report previously mentioned. 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and those of the contributing 
employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the 
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
The following chart shows the sensitivity of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the discount rate, based 
on calculations using discount rates of 5.90%, 6.90%, and 7.90%.  

48



 

 
- 29 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 

 
 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about PERS’ net position is available in its separately 
issued financial report. 
 
Defined Contribution Plan – PERS-eligible employees are statutorily required to contribute 6% of their annual 
covered salary to the OPSRP Individual Account Program (IAP), a defined contribution pension plan. Benefits 
terms, including contribution requirements, are established by the Oregon Legislature. As permitted, the City has 
opted to pick-up the contributions on behalf of employees; contributions were $30,865 for the year ended June 
30, 2022. Employees are fully vested after completing 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years. PERS 
contracts with VOYA Financial to administer the IAP. 
 
 
INTERFUND TRANSFERS (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
 

 
 
Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund 
that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move revenues restricted to debt service from the funds 
collecting the revenues to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted 
revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance 
with budgetary authorizations.  

1% Decrease 
(5.90%)

Discount Rate 
(6.90%)

1% Increase 
(7.90%)

Proportionate share of the 
net pension liability  $      1,025,625  $         522,276  $         101,155 

Fund Transfers In Transfers Out

General 28,500$         25,000$         
Local Option Tax 5,000             -                   
American Rescue Act -                   120,250         
Street Capital Projects 50,000           -                   
State Revenue Sharing 10,000           -                   
Street -                   101,000         
Park Capital Projects 5,000             -                   
Building Reserve 30,000           -                   
Equipment Replacement Reserve 86,000           -                   
Water Utility  55,500           430,000         
Sewer Utility 31,250           121,000         
Water Utility Capital 250,000         -                   
Sewer Utility Capital 10,000           -                   
Debt Service 236,000         -                   

797,250$        797,250$        

49



- 30 -

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

CONTINGENCIES 

The City purchases commercial insurance to cover all commonly insurable risks, which includes property 
damage, liability and employee bonds. Most policies carry a small deductible amount. There were no open claims 
at the time of this report. No insurance settlements have exceeded coverage in the last three years. 

50



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

51



- 31 -

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY FUNDS TO REPORTING FUNDS – GENERAL FUND –  
BALANCE SHEET (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
JUNE 30, 2022 

General
State Revenue 

Sharing

Total (reported 
as General 

Fund)
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 366,852$  45,822$   412,674$  

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities

Payroll withholdings 1,019$   -$ 1,019$   

Fund Balance

Unassigned 365,833  45,822  411,655  

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 366,852$  45,822$   412,674$  

 Budgetary funds 

52



- 32 -

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY FUNDS TO REPORTING FUNDS – GENERAL FUND –  
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

General
State Revenue 

Sharing

Total (reported 
as General 

Fund)
REVENUES

Taxes and assessments 246,338$  -$ 246,338$  
Licenses and permits 170,424  - 170,424 
Intergovernmental 79,966  32,588  112,554  
Fines and forfeitures 104  -  104  
Miscellaneous 33,775  113  33,888  

Total Revenues 530,607  32,701  563,308  

EXPENDITURES

General government 216,640  34,205  250,845  
Public works 194,291  - 194,291 
Community development 289,830  1,224  291,054 

Total Expenditures 700,761  35,429  736,190  

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (170,154)  (2,728) (172,882)  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 28,500  10,000  38,500  
Transfers out (25,000)  - (25,000) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3,500  10,000  13,500  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (166,654)  7,272  (159,382)  

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 532,487  38,550  571,037  

FUND BALANCE, end of year 365,833$  45,822$   411,655$  

 Budgetary funds 

53



 

- 33 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET – NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

 Special 
Revenue 

Street
Street Capital 

Projects
Building 
Reserve

Park Capital 
Projects

Equipment 
Replacement 

Reserve Total
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 211,479$      253,548$        206,978$      66,915$          21,175$          760,095$        

Fund Balance

Restricted for:
Streets 211,479$      253,548$        50,000$        -$                  -$                  515,027$        
Community development -                  -                    -                  66,915           -                    66,915           

Committed to:
Capital acquisitions -                  -                    156,978        -                    21,175           178,153          

Total Fund Balance 211,479        253,548          206,978        66,915           21,175           760,095          

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 211,479$      253,548$        206,978$      66,915$          21,175$          760,095$        

Capital Projects
 Capital 
Projects 

54



 

- 34 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

 Special 
Revenue 

Street
Street Capital 

Projects
Building 
Reserve

Park Capital 
Projects

Equipment 
Replacement 

Reserve Total
REVENUES

Licenses and permits -$                5,625$           -$                 500$             -$                 6,125$           
Intergovernmental 217,379        150,036          -                   -                   -                   367,415         
Miscellaneous 753              1,524             949               1,494             304               5,024             

Total Revenues 218,132        157,185          949               1,994             304               378,564         

EXPENDITURES
Current

Public works 57,385          -                    -                   -                   -                   57,385           
Community development 57,970          -                    -                   -                   -                   57,970           
Capital acquisitions 8,104           110,898          22,013           -                   97,909           238,924         

Total Expenditures 123,459        110,898          22,013           -                   97,909           354,279         

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 94,673          46,287           (21,064)          1,994             (97,605)          24,285           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                  50,000           30,000           5,000             86,000           171,000         
Transfers out (101,000)       -                    -                   -                   -                   (101,000)        

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (101,000)       50,000           30,000           5,000             86,000           70,000           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (6,327)          96,287           8,936             6,994             (11,605)          94,285           

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 217,806        157,261          198,042         59,921           32,780           665,810         

FUND BALANCE, end of year 211,479$      253,548$        206,978$       66,915$         21,175$         760,095$       

Capital Projects

55



 

- 35 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Taxes and assessments 221,000$      227,000$      246,338$      19,338$        
Licenses and permits 124,200        154,200        170,424        16,224          
Intergovernmental 85,200          90,700          79,966          (10,734)        
Fines and forfeitures 100              100              104              4                 
Miscellaneous 4,750           21,750          33,775          12,025          

Total Revenues 435,250        493,750        530,607        36,857          

EXPENDITURES

Adminstration 220,729        236,179        216,640        19,539          
Parks 208,338        208,338        185,343        22,995          
Library 126,656        126,656        104,487        22,169          
Planning 103,186        103,186        91,364          11,822          
Building program 95,853          119,315        102,927        16,388          
Contingency 47,080          66,668          -                  66,668          

Total Expenditures 801,842        860,342        700,761        159,581        

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) (366,592)       (366,592)       (170,154)       196,438        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 28,500          28,500          28,500          -                  
Transfers out (25,000)        (25,000)        (25,000)        -                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (363,092)       (363,092)       (166,654)       196,438        

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 363,092        363,092        532,487        169,395        

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                -$                365,833$      365,833$      

Budget Amounts

56



 

- 36 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – STATE REVENUE SHARING FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Intergovernmental 30,000$        30,000$        32,588$        2,588$          
Miscellaneous 600              600              113              (487)             

Total Revenues 30,600          30,600          32,701          2,101           

EXPENDITURES

Materials and services 54,940          54,940          34,205          20,735          
Capital outlay 6,400           6,400           1,224           5,176           

Total Expenditures 61,340          61,340          35,429          25,911          

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (30,740)        (30,740)        (2,728)          28,012          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 10,000          10,000          10,000          -                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (20,740)        (20,740)        7,272           28,012          

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 20,740          20,740          38,550          17,810          

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                -$                45,822$        45,822$        

Budget Amounts

57



 

- 37 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – TRANSIENT LODGING TAX FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Taxes and assessments 58,000$        58,000$        81,600$        23,600$        
Miscellaneous 300              300              227              (73)              

Total Revenues 58,300          58,300          81,827          23,527          

EXPENDITURES

Materials and services 2,810           2,810           2,083           727              
Contingency 258,437        258,437        -                  258,437        

Total Expenditures 261,247        261,247        2,083           259,164        

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (202,947)       (202,947)       79,744          282,691        

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 302,947        302,947        311,943        8,996           

FUND BALANCE, end of year 100,000$      100,000$      391,687$      291,687$      

Budget Amounts

58



 

- 38 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – LOCAL OPTION TAX FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Taxes and assessments 226,500$      226,500$      256,392$      29,892$        
Fines and forfeitures 8,500           8,500           9,336           836              
Miscellaneous 1,000           1,000           1,397           397              

Total Revenues 236,000        236,000        267,125        31,125          

EXPENDITURES

Personnel services 67,452          67,452          61,878          5,574           
Materials and services 254,900        254,900        239,817        15,083          
Capital outlay 2,000           2,000           617              1,383           
Contingency 2,488           2,488           -                  2,488           

Total Expenditures 326,840        326,840        302,312        24,528          

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (90,840)        (90,840)        (35,187)        55,653          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in 5,000           5,000           5,000           -                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (85,840)        (85,840)        (30,187)        55,653          

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 85,840          85,840          114,787        28,947          

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                -$                84,600$        84,600$        

Budget Amounts

59



 

- 39 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – AMERICAN RESCUE ACT FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Intergovernmental 560,000$      560,000$      304,570$      (255,430)$     

Total Revenues 560,000        560,000        304,570        (255,430)       

EXPENDITURES

Contingency 439,750        439,750        -                  439,750        

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 120,250        120,250        304,570        184,320        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers out (120,250)       (120,250)       (120,250)       -                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                  -                  184,320        184,320        

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year -                  -                  -                  -                  

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                -$                184,320$      184,320$      

Budget Amounts

60



 

- 40 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – STREET FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Intergovernmental 180,000$      180,000$      217,379$      37,379$        
Miscellaneous 600              600              753              153              

Total Revenues 180,600        180,600        218,132        37,532          

EXPENDITURES

Personnel services 61,981          61,981          57,385          4,596           
Materials and services 87,937          87,937          57,970          29,967          
Capital outlay 21,500          21,500          8,104           13,396          
Contingency 106,255        65,255          -                  65,255          

Total Expenditures 277,673        236,673        123,459        113,214        

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (97,073)        (56,073)        94,673          150,746        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out (65,000)        (106,000)       (101,000)       5,000           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (162,073)       (162,073)       (6,327)          155,746        

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 162,073        162,073        217,806        55,733          

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                -$                211,479$      211,479$      

Budget Amounts

61



 

- 41 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – STREET CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Licenses and permits 4,500$          4,500$          5,625$          1,125$          
Intergovernmental 850,000        850,000        150,036        (699,964)       
Miscellaneous 1,000           1,000           1,524           524              

Total Revenues 855,500        855,500        157,185        (698,315)       

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay 925,000        925,000        110,898        814,102        
Contingency 50,760          50,760          -                  50,760          

Total Expenditures 975,760        975,760        110,898        864,862        

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (120,260)       (120,260)       46,287          166,547        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 50,000          50,000          50,000          -                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (70,260)        (70,260)        96,287          166,547        

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 70,260          70,260          157,261        87,001          

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                -$                253,548$      253,548$      

Budget Amounts

62



 

- 42 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – BUILDING RESERVE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Miscellaneous 500$            500$            949$            449$            

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay 40,000          40,000          22,013          17,987          
Contingency 83,275          83,275          -                  83,275          

Total Expenditures 123,275        123,275        22,013          101,262        

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (122,775)       (122,775)       (21,064)        101,711        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 30,000          30,000          30,000          -                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (92,775)        (92,775)        8,936           101,711        

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 192,775        192,775        198,042        5,267           

FUND BALANCE, end of year 100,000$      100,000$      206,978$      106,978$      

Budget Amounts

63



 

- 43 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – PARK CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Licenses and permits 400$            400$            500$            100$            
Miscellaneous 1,000           1,000           1,494           494              

Total Revenues 1,400           1,400           1,994           594              

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay 45,000          45,000          -                  45,000          
Contingency 11,743          11,743          -                  11,743          

Total Expenditures 56,743          56,743          -                  56,743          

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (55,343)        (55,343)        1,994           57,337          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 5,000           5,000           5,000           -                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (50,343)        (50,343)        6,994           57,337          

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 50,343          50,343          59,921          9,578           

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                -$                66,915$        66,915$        

Budget Amounts

64



 

- 44 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Miscellaneous 550$            550$            304$            (246)$           

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay 64,000          105,000        97,909          7,091           
Contingency 20,868          20,868          -                  20,868          

Total Expenditures 84,868          125,868        97,909          27,959          

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (84,318)        (125,318)       (97,605)        27,713          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 50,000          91,000          86,000          (5,000)          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (34,318)        (34,318)        (11,605)        22,713          

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 34,318          34,318          32,780          (1,538)          

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                -$                21,175$        21,175$        

Budget Amounts

65



- 45 -

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -  
WATER OPERATIONS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Water
Utility

Water
Utility 

Capital
Interfund 

Eliminations
Total Water
Operations

REVENUES
Charges for services 1,026,214$    -$  -$  1,026,214$    
Intergovernmental - 400,000 - 400,000 
Miscellaneous 3,416 2,687 - 6,103

Total Revenues 1,029,630 402,687  - 1,432,317

EXPENDITURES
Personnel services 307,778  -  -  307,778  
Materials and services 251,423  -  -  251,423  
Capital outlay 2,493 145,490  - 147,983 

Total Expenditures 561,694  145,490  - 707,184 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 467,936  257,197  - 725,133 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital contributions - 21,510 - 21,510 
Transfers in 55,500  250,000 (250,000)  55,500 
Transfers out (430,000)  - 250,000 (180,000)  

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (374,500)  271,510  - (102,990) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 93,436  528,707  - 622,143 

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 682,853  228,086  - 910,939 

FUND BALANCE, end of year 776,289$      756,793$   -$  1,533,082$    

66



 

- 46 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – WATER UTILITY FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Charges for services 855,700$      855,700$      1,026,214$    170,514$      
Miscellaneous 3,000           3,000           3,416           416              

Total Revenues 858,700        858,700        1,029,630     170,930        

EXPENDITURES
Personnel services 325,932        325,932        307,778        18,154          
Materials and services 429,250        429,250        251,423        177,827        
Capital outlay 30,000          30,000          2,493           27,507          
Contingency 40,111          40,111          -                  40,111          

Total Expenditures 825,293        825,293        561,694        263,599        

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 33,407          33,407          467,936        434,529        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 55,500          55,500          55,500          -                  
Transfers out (430,000)       (430,000)       (430,000)       -                  

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (374,500)       (374,500)       (374,500)       -                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (341,093)       (341,093)       93,436          434,529        

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 416,093        416,093        682,853        266,760        

FUND BALANCE, end of year 75,000$        75,000$        776,289$      701,289$      

Budget Amounts

67



- 47 -

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – WATER UTILITY CAPITAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Intergovernmental -$  400,000$      400,000$   -$   
Miscellaneous  2,000  2,000  2,687  687 

Total Revenues 2,000  402,000  402,687  687  

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay 369,000  769,000  145,490  623,510  
Contingency 11,494  11,494  - 11,494 

Total Expenditures 380,494  780,494  145,490  635,004  

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES  (378,494)  (378,494)  257,197  635,691 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Capital contributions 16,968  16,968  21,510  4,542 
Transfers in 250,000  250,000  250,000  -  

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 266,968  266,968  271,510  4,542 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (111,526)  (111,526)  528,707  640,233  

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 111,526  111,526  228,086  116,560  

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$  -$  756,793$      756,793$   

Budget Amounts

68



- 48 -

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES –  
SEWER OPERATIONS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Sewer
Utility

Sewer
Utility 

Capital
Interfund 

Eliminations
Total Sewer
Operations

REVENUES
Charges for services 531,781$      -$  -$  531,781$      
Intergovernmental - 1,111,000 - 1,111,000 
Miscellaneous 2,636 1,647 - 4,283

Total Revenues 534,417  1,112,647 - 1,647,064 

EXPENDITURES
Personnel services 217,714  -  -  217,714  
Materials and services 148,276  -  -  148,276  
Capital outlay 38,259  470,215  - 508,474 

Total Expenditures 404,249  470,215  - 874,464 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 130,168  642,432  - 772,600 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital contributions - 37,820 - 37,820 
Transfers in 31,250  10,000 (10,000) 31,250 
Transfers out (121,000)  - 10,000 (111,000)  

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (89,750) 47,820  - (41,930) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 40,418  690,252  - 730,670 

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 418,860  308,422  - 727,282 

FUND BALANCE, end of year 459,278$      998,674$   -$   1,457,952$    

69



 

- 49 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – SEWER FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Charges for services 496,000$      496,000$      531,781$      35,781$        
Miscellaneous 1,250           1,250           2,636           1,386           

Total Revenues 497,250        497,250        534,417        37,167          

EXPENDITURES

Personnel services 228,869        228,869        217,714        11,155          
Materials and services 243,325        243,325        148,276        95,049          
Capital outlay 94,000          94,000          38,259          55,741          
Contingency 34,357          34,357          -                  34,357          

Total Expenditures 600,551        600,551        404,249        196,302        

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (103,301)       (103,301)       130,168        233,469        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 31,250          31,250          31,250          -                  
Transfers out (121,000)       (121,000)       (121,000)       -                  

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (193,051)       (193,051)       40,418          233,469        

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 293,051        293,051        418,860        125,809        

FUND BALANCE, end of year 100,000$      100,000$      459,278$      359,278$      

Budget Amounts

70



 

- 50 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – SEWER UTILITY CAPITAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Intergovernmental 1,500,000$    2,611,000$    1,111,000$    (1,500,000)$  
Miscellaneous 1,500           1,500           1,647           147              

Total Revenues 1,501,500     2,612,500     1,112,647     (1,499,853)    

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay 1,665,000     2,776,000     470,215        2,305,785     
Contingency 43,051          43,051          -                  43,051          

Total Expenditures 1,708,051     2,819,051     470,215        2,348,836     

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (206,551)       (206,551)       642,432        848,983        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Capital contributions 30,256          30,256          37,820          7,564           
Transfers in 10,000          10,000          10,000          -                  

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 40,256          40,256          47,820          7,564           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (166,295)       (166,295)       690,252        856,547        

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 266,295        266,295        308,422        42,127          

FUND BALANCE, end of year 100,000$      100,000$      998,674$      898,674$      

Budget Amounts

71



 

- 51 - 

CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (BUDGETARY BASIS)  – 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL – DEBT SERVICE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 

  

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Intergovernmental 23,249$        23,249$        23,249$         -$                  
Miscellaneous 1,000           1,000           1,712             712               

Total Revenues 24,249          24,249          24,961           712               

EXPENDITURES

Debt service

Principal 178,150        178,150        177,197         953               
Interest 65,061          65,061          66,014           (953)              

Total Expenditures 243,211        243,211        243,211         -                   

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (218,962)       (218,962)       (218,250)        712               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 236,000        236,000        236,000         -                   

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 17,038          17,038          17,750           712               

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 309,091        309,091        309,572         481               

FUND BALANCE, end of year 326,129$      326,129$      327,322$        1,193$           

Budget Amounts

72



 

 

 
COMPLIANCE SECTION 

73



 

 
- 52 - 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS 

 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Dayton 
Dayton, Oregon  
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
basic financial statements of the City of Dayton, Oregon (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and 
have issued our report thereon dated December 21, 2022.  
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-
000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion.  
 
We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures 
which included, but were not limited to the following: 
 
 Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295). 
 Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment. 
 Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294). 
 Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law. 
 Programs funded from outside sources. 
 Highway revenues used for public highways, roads, and streets. 
 Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294). 
 Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C). 
 Accountability for collecting or receiving money by elected officials - no money was collected or 

received by elected officials. 
  
In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the City was not in substantial 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon 
Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum 
Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.   

74



 

 
- 53 - 

 
 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over 
financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City's internal control. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management of the City of 
Dayton, Oregon and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these parties. 
 
 
   GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C. 
   CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
 
 
   By:   
    Devan W. Esch, A Shareholder 
    December 21, 2022 
 

 
 

75



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

76



To:   Honorable Mayor and City Councilors 
 
From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager 
 
Issue:   Awarding of Inflow and Infiltration Study   
 
Date:  February 6, 2023 
 
  
Background and Information 
 
At the February 6th meeting, the Council approved awarding the Inflow and Infiltration 
Study to Keller and Associates with a not to exceed amount of $38,000. This study is a 
requirement from the Department of Environmental Equality (DEQ) in response to our 
NPDES permit violation.  (The Inflow and Infiltration (I & I) study of the collection system 
which includes smoke testing of the entire collection system, a map of the entire collection 
system, flow mapping during storm events, and a comparison of the systems I & I to the 
environmental Protection Agency’s criteria.)   
 
We learned after the February 6th meeting that DEQ would only accept the results of the 
annual smoke testing that the city has completed after 2019.  We had to revise the scope 
to include two additional basins.  This adds $4,750 to Keller’s estimate of $34,490 for a 
total of $39,240.  This is over the approved $38,000 so I am bringing it back to the 
Council for approval.   I am adding a 10% additional contingency onto the updated project 
total.  
 
The City has the funds to cover the cost of this test in the Sewer Utility Capital Fund.  We 
are hopeful that the City will receive a $20,000 grant through Business Oregon so the 
total cost will be $23,164.  
 
 
 
 
City Manager Recommendation: I recommend approval. 
 
Potential Motion to Approve: “I move to approve awarding the Inflow and Infiltration Study 
required by the Department of Environmental Quality to Keller and Associates with a not to 
exceed amount of $43,164.”  
 
Council Options: 
 
1 – Approve as recommended. 
 
2 – Approve with amendments. 
 
3 – Take no action and direct staff to do further research or provide additional options. 
 

77



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

78



KA# 222XXX AMENDMENT NO 01 Page 1 of 2 

AMENDMENT TO OWNER-CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 

Amendment No. 01 

Background Data: 

Effective Date of Owner-Consultant Agreement: February 2, 2023 

Effective Date of this Amendment: February 14, 2023 

Owner: City of Dayton 

Consultant: Keller Associates, Inc. 

Project: Inflow and Infiltration Study 

KA # 222XXX 

Nature of Amendment:   

DEQ informed the City of Dayton (Owner) that only smoke testing after 2019 is eligible to be used in the upcoming 
I/I study. Since 2019 the Owner has smoke tested the Main Central and South Basins. The remaining basins to be 
smoke tested are the Palmer Creek Basin, Main North Basin, 9th Street Basin and Hwy 221 Basin. This amendment 
adds funds to smoke test the remaining Main North, 9th Street, and Hwy 221 Basins.  

Description of Modifications:   

1. Add $4,750 to Task 2 for modifications. 

2. Modify Task 2.3 with the following “Develop a smoke testing plan for four one basins to collect data to be 
used in evaluating and making recommendations to address I/I in the collection system. Provide smoke 
testing for two and a half one days. The City desires to investigate the Palmer Creek Basin, Main North Basin, 
9th Street Basin, Hwy 221 Basin using smoke testing to identify potential sources of I/I. This is anticipated to 
cover approximately 22,000 8,300  linear feet of collection system mainline, depending on field conditions 
and I/I challenges encountered.” 

Compensation Summary:   

 

Task 
Billing 
Basis 

Original 
Agreement 

Prior 
Amendments 

This 
Amendment Total 

Task 1:  Project Management LS $2,810   $2,810 

Task 2: I/I Evaluation LS $20,830  $4,750 $25,580 

Task 3: Inflow and Infiltration 
Assessment and Technical 
Memorandum 

LS $10,850   $10,850 

Total  $34,490   $39,240 

       LS = Lump Sum; T&M = Time and Materials 

 

Schedule:   

No change to the project is included with this Amendment. 

79



KA# 222XXX AMENDMENT NO 01 Page 2 of 2 

All provisions of the Agreement not modified by this or previous amendments remain in effect.  In witness thereof, 
the parties hereto have executed or caused to be executed by their duly authorized officials this Amendment to 
the Agreement on the respective dates indicated below. 

OWNER: City of Dayton  CONSULTANT: KELLER ASSOCIATES, INC. 

Signature: 
  

Signature: 
 

Name:    Name: Peter Olsen 

Title:   Title: Principal 

Address: 
  Address: 245 Commercial St SE, Suite 210                       

Salem, OR 97301 

Telephone:   Telephone: (503) 364-2002 

Date:   Date: 02/14/2023 

 

80



To:   Honorable Mayor and City Councilors 
 
From:  Melissa York, City Recorder 
 
Subject:  OLCC Annual Liquor License Renewals 
 
Date:  February 28, 2023 
  
STAFF REPORT 
 
Pursuant to ORS 471.166 a person applying for issuance or renewal of a liquor license 
through the Oregon Liquor Control Commission, is required to seek approval from the 
local government with jurisdiction and must pay an application fee, in an amount 
determined by the governing body of the city or county, for each application, not to exceed 
$25.00 per application. 
 
Notices to renew annual liquor licenses were mailed to all eligible businesses in Dayton 
on January 12, 2023, asking those businesses to respond by February 10, 2023. As of 
February 28, 2023, all businesses have complied and the $25 per application has been 
paid. 
 
Each year Staff requests prior year crime stats from the Yamhill County Sheriff’s Office 
to present to Council.   Attached is spreadsheet with a snapshot of the activity from 2021-
2022.   
 
Per OLCC, governing bodies have until March 10th to make a recommendation.  Here are 
the recommendation options:   
      
A.  Do Nothing: If a recommendation is not submitted the OLCC will process the renewal 

as a favorable recommendation. 
      

B. Make a Denial Recommendation: (must meet the denial criteria) 
1. File an unfavorable recommendation, stating the grounds for the unfavorable    

recommendation; or 
2. Make a written request for additional time (45-day extension) to complete an 

investigation. The request must state:    
a.) The reasons why you are considering an unfavorable recommendation. 

  
b.) The specific grounds being considered.  OAR 845-005-0308(3). 

 
Unfavorable means recommending denial of a license or requesting restrictions be placed 
on a license.  
      
Denial Criteria 
 

81



The following is a list of problems relating to the APPLICANT or BUSINESS that OLCC 
can consider refusing or restrict a license:   
      

1) Applicant has a habit of using alcohol or drugs to excess.    
  

2) Applicant makes a false statement to OLCC (must be related to a refusal basis). 
3) Applicant has been convicted of local, state or federal laws that are substantially 

related to the fitness of holding a liquor license.       
4) Applicant has demonstrated poor moral character.      
5) Applicant has a poor record of compliance when previously licensed by OLCC.  
6) Applicant is not the legitimate owner of the business.      
7) The business has a history of serious and persistent problems at this location. The 

problems can include:      
o Obtrusive or excess noise, music or sound vibrations     
o Public drunkenness      
o Fights or altercations      
o Harassment      
o Unlawful drug sales      
o Alcohol or related litter      

      
OLCC is not able to consider the following issues when deciding to renew a liquor license:
  

1) Lack of parking      
2) Increase in traffic      
3) Too many licenses in a specific area (saturation)      
4) Entertainment type - nude dancing, gambling, live bands, etc.   

  
5) Increased noise      
6) Zoning issues      

 
OLCC REASONS TO DENY OR RESTRICT A LICENSE      
ORS 471.313(4)(5), OAR 845-005-0320, 845-005-0321, 845-005-0322, 845-0325, 845-
005-0326(4)(5) OR 845-005-0035  
  
 

82



Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t
Ad

dr
es

s

In
ci

de
nt

s
N

oi
se

 
In

ci
de

nt
s w

ith
 C

as
e 

#'
s

Al
l 

In
ci

de
nt

s
N

oi
se

In
ci

de
nt

s w
ith

 C
as

e 
#'

s
Al

l 
In

ci
de

nt
s

N
oi

se

Br
ic

k 
Ha

ll 
18

86
30

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
n/

a
n/

a
N

ew
 B

us
in

es
s -

 0
0

0
1 

- I
nt

ox
ic

at
ed

/n
o 

ar
re

st
s

1
0

By
-P

as
s B

ar
 &

 G
ril

l
40

0 
Fe

rr
y 

St
re

et
14

3 
Co

m
pl

ai
nt

s  
 

2 
Ci

ta
tio

ns
2 

- I
nt

ox
ic

at
ed

 F
ig

ht
in

g/
DU

II 
ar

re
st

; F
ig

ht
in

g/
no

 a
rr

es
ts

2
0

4 
- I

nt
ox

ic
at

ed
 F

ig
ht

in
g/

no
 

ar
re

st
s;

 1
 F

ig
ht

 w
as

 
tr

ep
as

se
d;

 1
 F

ig
ht

 n
o 

ar
re

st
6

0

Ce
nt

er
 M

ar
ke

t
90

1 
Fe

rr
y 

St
re

et
12

0

2 
- U

nd
er

ag
e 

al
co

ho
l s

al
es

 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

/u
nf

ou
nd

ed
; 

Dr
in

ki
ng

 in
 v

eh
ic

le
/u

na
bl

e 
to

 lo
ca

te

2
0

2-
 R

ep
or

ts
 o

f d
rin

ki
ng

 in
 

ve
hi

cl
e/

un
ab

le
 to

 lo
ca

te
2

0

Do
lla

r G
en

er
al

50
1 

7t
h 

St
re

et
16

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Jo
el

 P
al

m
er

 H
ou

se
60

0 
Fe

rr
y 

St
re

et
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ju
an

ita
's

40
1 

Fe
rr

y 
St

re
et

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Lo
ne

st
ar

 B
BQ

31
2 

Fe
rr

y 
St

re
et

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ti
en

da
 Y

 V
id

eo
30

8 
Fe

rr
y 

St
re

et
0

0
0

0
0

1 
- I

nt
ox

ic
at

ed
/n

o 
ar

re
st

s
1

0

W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y 
RV

 P
ar

k
16

20
5 

SE
 K

re
de

r R
d

44
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 p
le

as
e 

se
e 

at
ta

ch
ed

 re
po

rt
 fr

om
 th

e 
Ya

m
hi

ll 
Co

un
ty

 S
he

rif
f's

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t.

20
22

Ac
tiv

ity
20

20
20

21

83



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

84



85



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

86



To:   Honorable Mayor and City Councilors 
 
From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager 
 
Issue:   Approval of City Council Strategic Goals for 2023-2024 
 
Date:  March 6, 2023 
  
 
Background and Information 
 
At the February 21st City Council Work Session, the City Council discussed their 2023-2024 
Strategic Plan Goals. The Council discussed previous goals, made modifications, and added new 
goals.  
 
Attached is a red-line version of the 22-23 goals showing the goals that were completed, 
changed, and added.  Following that is a final draft of the 2023-2024 Strategic Goals.  
 
City Manager Recommendation: I recommend approval of the 2023-2024 Strategic Plan 
Goals. 
 
Potential Motion to Approve: “I move to approve the City Council Strategic Plan Goals for 
fiscal year 2023-2024.”  
 
Council Options: 
 
1 – Approve the strategic goals as recommended. 
2 – Approve the strategic goals with amendments. 
3 – Take no action and direct staff to do further research or provide further options. 

87



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

88



Strategic Plan Goals 
2022-2023 

 
Priority Ratings:  1 – Begin/Budget in the next fiscal year      

2 – Accomplish/Budget for in 2-3 years    
3 – Accomplish/Budget for in 3-5 years  

   4 – Routine – Ongoing from year to year 
 
 
Goal A – Develop and maintain resilient infrastructure to support operations and meet growth. 

 
 
Goal B –Create a livable community that is aesthetically pleasing, affordable, inviting, and with a vibrant 
and diverse economy.   
 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 
Develop Request for Proposals (RFP) for Dayton Village property as affordable housing. 1 
Add Staff to Support Economic Development (1.0 FTE)  1 
Explore Special Event Permit for Private Property 1 
Establish a 50/50 Sidewalk Program for Dayton Residents 12 
Research Brownfield’s Integrated Planning Grant for Economic Development. 12 
Establish a Mural Policy to acquire murals as public art (similar to the City of Salem’s program). 2 
Establish a Transient Lodging Tax Revenue Plan. 3 
Coordinate Wayfinding/Tourism Signage.   3 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 
Complete Sidewalk Improvements on Ferry Street – 9th to Flower Lane.  1 
Develop five-year plan consisting of finance strategy, design, and construction for the building 
of new City Hall and Library in 3-5 years. 13 

Evaluate funding models for establishing Pavement Management Program. 1 
Design and permitting on utility bridge with infrastructure upgrades.  1 
Complete Sewer Rate Study 1 
Complete HWY 221 Lift Station in 18 months. 21 
Complete construction of a steel truss bridge main span replacement with infrastructure 
upgrades. 2 

Adopt prioritized list of sewer line replacements to be completed on annual basis (3-4 blocks at 
a time). 2 

Create framework for resiliency plan. 2 
Add aeration to Sewer Ponds 1 and 3   31 
Update Water Master Plan in next 5 years. 3 
Update Wastewater Master Plan in next 5 years. 31 
Obtain funding for replacing the water system main transmission line from Watershed to the 
Footbridge. 32 

Complete 6th Street Overlay  1 
Complete Water Management Conservation Plan  1 
Acquire Funding for Fisher Farms Well Tie-In in 3-5 years.  32 
Complete Inflow and Infiltration Report for DEQ  1 
North Main Trunk Sewer Replacement to Address Inflow and Infiltration  2 
Palmer Creek Waterline Replacement  3 
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA)  Upgrade at Water Treatment Plant 1 
Complete Overlay of 7th and 9th Street (between Ferry and Ash)  1 
Complete 8th Street Rebuild and Overlay (funding through Small City Allotment Grant)  2 
Pedestrian ramps at Andrew Smith Park (patching)  1 
  

89



Create and Administer Community Survey to Gauge Citizen Opinion on Future Development 
and Tourism 1 

Strategic Planning for Future Tourism 
 Including 1. Branding 
 and 2. Development of Dayton Tourism Website  

1 
1 

Update the Dayton Municipal Code 
1. Update Sign Code to Include Political Signs Temporary Signs
2. Update Clear Vision code
3. Update Design Code in the Central Business Overlay Zone
1.4. Update Sunset Clause in Land Use Planning Chapter 7 

4 
1 
1 
1 

Continue Yard of the Month/Mayor’s Beautification Program. 4 
Continue Holiday Lights Competition. 4 

Goal C – Capitalize on Dayton’s facilities and resources to provide recreational and cultural 
opportunities. 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 
Set up Site Visit/Video of Country Heritage Estates Phase 2 pedestrian/bike trail with 
wayfinding signs. 1 

Improve Alderman Park (Fencing and water feature) 2 
Install lighting near court areas in city parks 212 
Develop strategy for ownership of the County’s Dayton Landing Park and boat ramp. 2 
Acquire other half of Legion Field for development of a recreational facility. 2 
Explore Accessible Playground Equipment 32 
Complete Parks Improvement Survey with Possible Project List 1 
Complete Parks Master Plan 1 
Complete Property Line Adjustments for Legion Field and City Hall properties 1 
Community Center Rental Analysis 1 

Goal D – Use Dayton’s heritage and historic resources to forward our image as an authentic and 
charming town. 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 
Promote Friday Nights and Old Timers Weekend. 4 
Research the possibility of a cell phone app for a historic tour or in a downloadable format. 4 
GIS Historical Story Map for Dayton and Brookside Cemetery – “Tales of Dayton’s Pioneers” 
through Certified Local Government Grant 1 

Bring back Cinco de Mayo Annual Event with Parade 1 

Goal E – Engage in efficient and effective activities to promote community safety and wellness. 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 
Establish an Emergency Operations Response Team partnering with the Dayton School 
District. 1 

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Training for management level staff 1 
Educate the Dayton Community regarding the Public Safety Levy in Public Safety 2 

90



Ongoing Diversity, Equity and Including Training for Management Level Staff 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Goal F – Enhance communications to actively engage the community. 
 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 
Migrate over to daytonoregon.gov from ci.dayton.or.us  1 
Research Offering Bilingual classes at Community Center 1 
Form Youth Advisory Council Pilot Program. 2 
Complete annual city survey. 4 
Coordinate communication with community groups. 4 
E-Permitting Software Installation with Online Payment Option  1 
Ferry Street News Quarterly Newsletter 4 
Youth Activities at the Community Center with Mecha  4 
Host Town Hall for Spanish Speaking Community regarding City services 1 

 
 

91



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

92



Strategic Plan Goals 
2023-2024 

 
Priority Ratings:  1 – Begin/Budget in the next fiscal year      

2 – Accomplish/Budget for in 2-3 years    
3 – Accomplish/Budget for in 3-5 years  

   4 – Routine – Ongoing from year to year 
 
Goal A – Develop and maintain resilient infrastructure to support operations and meet growth. 

 
 
Goal B –Create a livable community that is aesthetically pleasing, affordable, inviting, and with a vibrant 
and diverse economy.   
 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 
Develop Request for Proposals (RFP) for Dayton Village Property as Affordable Housing 1 
Strategic Planning for Future Tourism 
      1. Branding  
      2. Development of Dayton Tourism Website    

 
1 
1 

Create and Administer Community Survey to Gauge Citizen Opinion on Future Development 
and Tourism  1 

Explore Special Event Permit for Private Property 1 
Update the Dayton Municipal Code 

1. Update Sign Code to Include Temporary Signs  
2. Update Clear Vision Code  
3. Update Design Code in the Central Business Overlay Zone  
4. Update Sunset Clause in Land Use Planning Chapter 7 

 
1 
1 
1 
1 

Establish a 50/50 Sidewalk Program for Dayton Residents 2 
Research Brownfield’s Integrated Planning Grant for Economic Development 2 
Establish a Mural Policy to Acquire Murals as Public Art (Similar to the City of Salem’s Program) 2 
Establish a Transient Lodging Tax Revenue Plan 3 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 
Evaluate Funding Models for Establishing Pavement Management Program 1 
Complete HWY 221 Lift Station in 18 Months 1 
Add Aeration to Sewer Ponds 1 and 3   1 
Update Wastewater Master Plan 1 
Complete Inflow and Infiltration Report for DEQ  1 
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) Upgrade at Water Treatment Plant 1 
Complete Overlay of 7th and 9th Street (Between Ferry and Ash)  1 
Pedestrian Ramp Patching at Andrew Smith Park  1 
Complete Construction of a Steel Truss Bridge Main Span Replacement with Infrastructure 
Upgrades 2 

Adopt Prioritized List of Sewer Line Replacements to be Completed on an Annual Basis (3-4 
Blocks at a Time) 2 

Create Framework for Resiliency Plan 2 
Obtain Funding for Replacing the Water System Main Transmission Line from Watershed to 
the Footbridge 2 

Acquire Funding for Fisher Farms Well Tie-In  2 
North Main Trunk Sewer Replacement to Address Inflow and Infiltration  2 
Complete 8th Street Rebuild and Overlay (Funding Through Small City Allotment Grant)  2 
Palmer Creek Waterline Replacement  3 
Develop Five-Year Plan Consisting of Finance Strategy, Design, and Construction for the 
Building of New City Hall and Library 

3 
 

Update Water Master Plan 3 

93



Coordinate Wayfinding/Tourism Signage  3 
Continue Yard of the Month/Mayor’s Beautification Program 4 
Continue Holiday Lights Competition 4 

 
Goal C – Capitalize on Dayton’s facilities and resources to provide recreational and cultural 
opportunities. 
 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 
Complete Parks Master Plan  1 
Complete Property Line Adjustments for Legion Field and City Hall Properties  1 
Community Center Rental Analysis  1 
Install Lighting Near Court Areas in City Parks 2 
Develop Strategy for Ownership of the County’s Dayton Landing Park and Boat Ramp 2 
Explore Accessible Playground Equipment 2 

 
 
Goal D – Use Dayton’s heritage and historic resources to forward our image as an authentic and 
charming town. 
 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 
GIS Historical Story Map for Dayton and Brookside Cemetery – “Tales of Dayton’s Pioneers” 
Through Certified Local Government Grant  1 

Bring Back Cinco de Mayo Annual Event with Parade  1 
Promote Friday Nights and Old Timers Weekend 4 

 
 
 
Goal E – Engage in efficient and effective activities to promote community safety and wellness. 
 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 
Establish an Emergency Operations Response Team Partnering with the Dayton School 
District 1 

Educate the Dayton Community Regarding the Public Safety Levy  2 
Ongoing Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Training for Management Level Staff 4 

 
 
Goal F – Enhance communications to actively engage the community. 
 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 
Research Offering Bilingual Classes at Community Center 1 
E-Permitting Software Installation with Online Payment Option  1 
Host Town Hall for Spanish Speaking Community Regarding City Services & Community 
Partners  1 

Form Youth Advisory Council Pilot Program 2 
Complete Annual City Survey 4 
Coordinate Communication with Community Groups 4 
Ferry Street News Quarterly Newsletter 4 
Youth Activities at the Community Center with MECHA  4 

 
 

94



City of Dayton Check Register - no signature lines Page:     1

Check Issue Dates: 1/1/2023 - 1/31/2023 Mar 02, 2023  04:51PM

Report Criteria:

Report type:  Summary

GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Discount Check

Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number Sequence GL Account Taken Amount

01/23 01/12/2023 28378 151 Beery, Elsner & Hammond Multiple 1 101.101.700.00 .00 1,026.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28379 1064 Botten's Equipment Rental 1-632234 1 100.100.950.00 .00 257.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28380 1878 Brightside Electric & Lighting 5079-13 10 400.400.707.00 .00 1,700.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28381 1497 C3 Intelligence, Inc. 29864 10 400.400.705.00 .00 253.47

01/23 01/12/2023 28382 1922 Cintas Corp Multiple 6 400.400.616.10 .00 179.14

01/23 01/12/2023 28383 105 City of Dayton Multiple 1 400.400.600.20 .00 2,054.15

01/23 01/12/2023 28384 1685 CivicPlus LLC 247138 11 400.400.705.30 .00 1,700.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28385 1865 Comcast Business 8778105130 1 400.400.705.30 .00 104.85

01/23 01/12/2023 28386 519 Comcast Cable - internet 8778105130 11 400.400.705.30 .00 199.79

01/23 01/12/2023 28387 1841 CyntrX INV148734 5 400.400.614.00 .00 45.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28388 231 DOWL 2860.801850 1 700.700.910.41 .00 9,383.76

01/23 01/12/2023 28389 789 Edge Analytical Multiple 1 400.400.751.00 .00 650.21

01/23 01/12/2023 28390 1810 Elizabeth Sagmiller 223 1 400.400.705.80 .00 2,850.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28391 513 Elizabeth Wytoski EXPENSES  1 500.500.611.00 .00 190.25

01/23 01/12/2023 28392 1247 ezTask.com, Inc. 07911522 10 400.400.705.30 .00 1,650.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28393 543 Ferrellgas 1121759952 1 100.100.707.30 .00 622.65

01/23 01/12/2023 28394 247 Grove, Mueller & Swank 100614 12 105.105.608.00 .00 2,500.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28395 134 Iron Mountain Records Mgmt HCRW718 10 400.400.601.00 .00 116.45

01/23 01/12/2023 28396 1952 Kriysten Moss DEPOSIT RE 2 400.400.750.00 .00 86.74

01/23 01/12/2023 28397 139 Lowe's Multiple 6 400.400.617.00 .00 3,922.64

01/23 01/12/2023 28398 1913 Marcelina Segundo DEPOSIT RE 1 100.100.750.20 .00 350.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28399 121 McMinnville Water & Light 67508 DEC 2 1 300.300.600.00 .00 253.85

01/23 01/12/2023 28400 1950 Niles Tuihalangingie DEPOSIT RE 1 100.100.750.20 .00 200.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28401 214 OAWU 34349 1 300.300.706.00 .00 305.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28402 173 One Call Concepts, Inc. 2120349 2 400.400.799.00 .00 19.44

01/23 01/12/2023 28403 224 Orchard & Vineyard Supply Multiple 6 400.400.617.00 .00 104.12

01/23 01/12/2023 28404 172 Oregon Assoc of Municipal Recor 03684 12 500.500.706.00 .00 75.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28405 103 PGE 8721021000  1 300.300.600.00 .00 119.78

01/23 01/12/2023 28406 1951 Ramiro Ulloa DEPOSIT RE 2 400.400.750.00 .00 37.58

01/23 01/12/2023 28407 106 Recology Western Oregon 20452397 2 200.200.603.00 .00 320.77

01/23 01/12/2023 28408 892 Spaniol's Striping & Signs 121522 1 100.100.707.30 .00 682.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28409 119 Sprint 414585229-2 10 400.400.602.00 .00 569.83

01/23 01/12/2023 28410 417 Stevens Water Monitoring 245349 1 400.400.614.40 .00 280.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28411 171 Terminix Processing Center Multiple 1 100.100.707.30 .00 183.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28412 937 United Site Services INV-0129431 1 100.103.619.00 .00 498.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28413 1907 Valley View Fence & Deck LLC 86 1 760.760.930.00 .00 100.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28414 1470 Vicki Durand JANUARY 20 5 400.400.537.00 .00 630.00

01/23 01/12/2023 28415 112 Wilco 190317 7 400.400.614.10 .00 1,566.68

01/23 01/12/2023 28416 114 Yamhill County Sheriff JANUARY 20 1 101.101.705.10 .00 15,324.12

01/23 01/12/2023 28417 117 YCOM 5008004 1 101.101.770.00 .00 2,296.67

  Grand Totals:  .00 53,407.94

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check

95



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

96



To: Mayor Marquez and City Councilors 

Through: Rochelle Roaden, City Manager 

From: Patty Ringnalda, Code Compliance 

Subject: Code Compliance Activities Report  

Date: February 2023 

2022/2023 

Category Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

Animals 2 2 6 2 1 3 7 1 

Building 1 2 1 4 3 2 

Junk Private Property 1 1 2 

Noise 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Noxious Vegetation 2 1 1 1 

Parking Right-of-way 5 17 12 1 6 5 4 8 

Storing Junk - ROW 5 18 10 4 

Attractive Nuisance 1 

Posting Signs 2 2 4 1 1 1 1 

Camping 1 1 

Sidewalks 1 

Vehicle Code/YCSO 2 1 

Other 4 4 4 3 

TOTAL 12 29 47 25 12 15 21    19

97



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

98



    City     UCR Description 2/1/2022 to 
2/28/2022

2/1/2023 to 
2/28/2023

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

DAYTON

Part 1

Aggravated Assault                 0 0 2

Burglary-Business                  0 0 2 1

Burglary-Non-Residence             0 0 7

Burglary-Residence                 0 0 2

Larceny                            4 0 3 48

Motor Vehicle Theft-Auto           1 1 1 13

Part 1 Total 5 1 -80.00 % 6 73

Part 2

All Other                          2 0 12

Disorderly Conduct                 2 0 1 3

Drug Laws                          0 2 2 17

DUII                               3 6 100.00 % 7 23

Forgery                            0 1 2

Fraud                              0 0 3 5

Kidnapping                         0 0 1

Liquor Laws                        1 0 1

Runaway                            0 0 2

Sex Offenses                       1 0 5

Simple Assault                     4 2 -50.00 % 4 24

Stolen Property                    0 0 10

Tresspass/Prowler                  1 0 1 12

Vandalism                          5 3 -40.00 % 5 31

Weapons                            1 0 8

Part 2 Total 20 14 -30.00 % 25 154

Part 3

All Other                          5 6 20.00 % 16 92

Non-Reportable Offenses            8 12 50.00 % 24 132

Part 3 Total 13 18 38.46 % 40 224

Total For DAYTON 38 33 -13.16 % 71 451

Report run date: 3/1/2023

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for DAYTON

From 2/1/2023 to 2/28/2023

99



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

100



 

Local Government Spring Conference 

Registration Now Open! 

April 25-26 in Seaside 

This two-day event will be a great opportunity for public officials from around the state to network 
and learn about issues impacting all cities. For more information about Seaside, go to Visit Seaside. 

Questions?  View the conference FAQs and cancellation information, or contact us Register Now 

Preliminary Agenda 

Tuesday, April 25 

8:30 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.    Councilors Workshop - Combating Misinformation in the Era of 
Polarization 

Speaker: Elizabeth Schroeder, Associate Professor of Economics, School of Public Policy, Oregon 
State University 
Americans are increasingly turning to the internet and fragmented media sources for news and information, 
leading to a crisis of misinformation. We’ll discuss the challenges facing elected officials in this environment, 
and the best tools for fighting misinformation, communicating effectively through all the noise, and 
maintaining public trust. 

8:30 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.    Mayors (OMA) Workshop - Active Civility: How Mayors Can Help Local 
Political Cultures Heal 

Speaker: Ron Mock, Professor Emeritus of Politics and Peace Studies, George Fox University 
America is experiencing the highest levels of bitter political polarization in living memory, driven by 
unprecedented changes in society and technology. These dynamics affect us at the local level too, with 
potentially devastating effects on quality of life in our communities. This workshop will demonstrate 
how mayors can foster a healthier, happier, local political culture by: looking at disagreements in a different 
light; improving the "soil" of the relationship’s ecosystem within our communities; modeling a three-tiered 
approach to civility and the stewardship of disagreements; and building the community's capacity to disagree 
without distrusting.  

8:30 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.    Managers (OCCMA) Workshop 
11:30 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.  Networking Break 
12:00 p.m. – 1:30 p.m.    Welcome Lunch & Keynote - Andrea Bell, Executive Director, Oregon 
Housing and Community Services (OHCS) 

101

https://www.seasideor.com/
https://www.orcities.org/application/files/6016/7699/6010/2023_LOC_Spring_Conference_Registration_FAQs.pdf
https://imis.orcities.org/LOC/LOC/Event_Display.aspx?EventKey=LGSC2023


Ms. Bell oversees the strategic direction, vision, and growth of the state agency responsible for 
providing stable and affordable housing across Oregon. In her previous role with OHCS, she served as Director 
of Housing Stabilization, where she led the implementation of a wide range of homeless services, energy and 
weatherization assistance, rental assistance programs, and policy initiatives. 

1:30 p.m. – 2:00 p.m.     Networking Break 
2:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m.     Breakout Sessions 

• Cyber Security – Prepare and Respond to a Cyber Disruption 
Speaker: Sherri Yoakum, CSS Business Engagement Manager, Enterprise Information Services, 
Oregon Department of Administrative Services 
The world is increasingly dependent on technology, and systems are more complex and interconnected than 
ever. Likewise, malicious cyber actors are highly skilled, and attacks on government organizations are increasing. 
This session will cover how cities can be prepared to respond to cyber disruptions. 

• Legislative Update 

3:00 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.     Networking Snack Break 
3:30 p.m. – 4:30 p.m.     Breakout Sessions 

• Oregon Housing and Community Services (OHCS) 101 

• Aging Infrastructure: Tidal Gates 
Panelists will discuss the relevance, current state, and need for the replacement of tide gates within Oregon 
communities. Speakers from Oregon Watershed Enhancement Board (OWEB) will discuss funding opportunities 
for communities to plan and replace aging tidal gates. City representatives will offer their perspective 
on existing infrastructure issues surrounding tidal gates, as well as reflections on their own recent gate 
replacements.  

5:30 p.m. – 9:00 p.m.      Networking Reception                                                                               

Wednesday, April 26 

7:30 a.m. - 8:30 a.m.       Networking Breakfast 
8:30 a.m. – 10:00 a.m.    Breakout Sessions 

• Behavioral Health and Access to Housing  
Moderator: 
   Andrew Over, Regional Market VP at Regence; Cambia Health Foundation Board of Directors 
Panelists: 
   Leslie Foren, Director of Program Strategy & Evaluation, Cambia Health Foundation 
   Kay Toran, President/CEO, Volunteers of America  
   Maeve McClellan/Leslie Foren/Steve Lesky, Representatives of the Cambia Health Foundation team 
    
Limited access to behavioral health resources creates barriers for people in need, further hindering 
their ability to get and keep a job, and ultimately impacting accessibility to housing.  This session will 
highlight Regence/Cambia’s recent commitments to the Oregon market in the behavioral health 

102



space, including community investments to help provide the necessary behavioral health resources 
for those who otherwise would not have access.  

• Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 

10:00 a.m. – 10:30 a.m.  Networking Break 
10:30 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.  Breakout Sessions 

• From Employee Speech to Public Comment and Protests: The First Amendment’s Impact on 
Cities 
Speakers: 
   Harry Wilson, Shareholder, and Chair of the Government Practice Group, Markowitz Herbold PC  
   Hannah Hoffman, Associate, Markowitz Herbold PC 
This session will cover how city governments and employees can and cannot regulate speech under 
the First Amendment.  It will cover timely issues, such as: How cities can regulate employees’ speech 
on and off the clock; How city councils can regulate public comment sessions at city council 
meetings; and How to manage free speech issues when interacting with constituents on social 
media.  The session is also designed to help city officials make decisions about free speech issues as 
they arise, providing principles that can be applied in new and novel contexts and situations. 

• Addressing the Workforce Housing Shortage 
The panelists will share a broad range of approaches and solutions to the workforce housing 
shortage in Oregon’s coastal communities. Discussions will explore solutions from the county, city, 
and developer perspective, including: What workforce housing is and is not; The current Pacific City 
King Fisher project; Future housing projects on the horizon; Bay City’s approach to creating 
workforce housing projects; The mechanics of planning, funding, and overseeing project 
development; and The developer’s experience of working alongside government. Finally, the Q&A 
segment will discuss how to ensure these types of projects are successful. 

11:30 a.m. – 11:45 a.m.  Networking Break 
11:45 a.m. – 1:15 p.m.    Lunch & General Session - Top 5 Things State Agencies Wish City 
Officials Knew About Them 
1:15 p.m. – 1:45 p.m.      Networking Break 
1:45 p.m. - 2:45 p.m.       Breakout Sessions 

• Regional Collaboration 

• Update on Homelessness Initiatives 

2:45 p.m. - 3:00 p.m.       Networking Snack Break 
3:00 p.m. – 4:30 p.m.      General Session - Roundtable Discussions 
4:30 p.m. – 6:00 p.m.      Happy Hour Reception 
6:00 p.m.                           Dinner on Your Own: sign up onsite to join a reserved table at a local 
restaurant 

103



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

104



From: Melissa Dablow
Subject: Registration Open! Oregon Land Use Planning Fundamentals for Elected Officials and Planning Commissioners
Date: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 1:23:39 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png

Oregon Land Use Planning Fundamentals
for Elected Officials and Planning
Commissioners
The LOC is pleased to announce a virtual training opportunity for members: Oregon Land Use
Planning Fundamentals for Elected Officials and Planning Commissioners.
The training will be offered live via Zoom on Wednesday, March 15 from 6-8 p.m.  Register
Here
Join fellow elected officials in an interactive session to learn the fundamentals of Oregon's land use
planning system. The course will cover the history of Oregon planning procedures for land use
hearings; and how to support planning staff in creating defensible findings for land use decisions. In
addition,  participants will learn how to actively engage in long range planning and guide goals and
projects to improve community livability.
 
Speaker Alice Cannon has more than 25 years local government planning experience. Most of her
service is with Oregon's rural cities and suburban communities within the Portland metro area. She
currently works for Wasco County in The Dalles, serving as the Long Range/Special Projects Planner.
She holds a bachelor's degree from University of Oregon, and a master’s degree in Urban and
Regional Planning from the University of Colorado at Denver. Alice has served on the boards of the
Oregon City/County Management Association (OCCMA) and Oregon City Planning Directors
Association (OCPDA).
 
If you have any questions, please contact LOC@orcities.org        
 
 

Melissa Dablow, Events & Operations Coordinator
503-588-6550 direct: 971-428-7984 
1201 Court St. NE, Suite 200, Salem, OR 97301-4194
www.orcities.org

  
 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

105

mailto:mdablow@orcities.org
https://www.orcities.org/training-events/loc-training-events-calendar/details/oregon-land-use-planning-fundamentals
https://www.orcities.org/training-events/loc-training-events-calendar/details/oregon-land-use-planning-fundamentals
https://www.orcities.org/training-events/loc-training-events-calendar/details/oregon-land-use-planning-fundamentals
https://www.orcities.org/training-events/loc-training-events-calendar/details/oregon-land-use-planning-fundamentals
https://www.orcities.org/training-events/loc-training-events-calendar/details/oregon-land-use-planning-fundamentals
https://www.orcities.org/training-events/loc-training-events-calendar/details/oregon-land-use-planning-fundamentals
mailto:LOC@orcities.org
https://www.orcities.org/
https://www.orcities.org/
https://www.facebook.com/LeagueOfOregonCities/
https://twitter.com/OregonCities

League of Oregon Cities.













 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

106



107



108



W
el

l 1
W

el
l 2

W
el

l 3
W

el
l 4

W
el

l 5
To

ta
l

Tr
ea

tm
en

t 
Pl

an
t I

nf
lu

en
t

B
ac

kw
as

h
La

fa
ye

tte
 

D
ist

rib
ut

io
n

D
ay

to
n 

D
ist

rib
ut

io
n

La
fa

ye
tte

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

D
ay

to
n 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
L 

+ 
D

 
D

iff
 B

et
w

ee
n 

W
el

l T
ot

al
 a

nd
 

D
ist

rib
ut

io
n

Ja
n

1,
55

2,
00

0
1,

14
4,

00
0

1,
97

8,
00

0
1,

62
5,

00
0

1,
17

7,
00

0
7,

47
6,

00
0

7,
03

4,
54

0
25

6,
00

0
3,

11
3,

00
0

3,
65

3,
00

0
46

%
54

%
6,

76
6,

00
0

71
0,

00
0

Fe
b

1,
42

2,
00

0
1,

11
3,

00
0

2,
14

9,
00

0
1,

68
9,

00
0

1,
14

0,
00

0
7,

51
3,

00
0

6,
79

0,
95

7
24

4,
00

0
3,

44
9,

00
0

3,
37

5,
00

0
51

%
49

%
6,

82
4,

00
0

68
9,

00
0

M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug Se
p

O
ct

N
ov D
ec

To
ta

l
2,

97
4,

00
0

2,
25

7,
00

0
4,

12
7,

00
0

3,
31

4,
00

0
2,

31
7,

00
0

14
,9

89
,0

00
13

,8
25

,4
97

50
0,

00
0

6,
56

2,
00

0
7,

02
8,

00
0

48
%

52
%

13
,5

90
,0

00
1,

39
9,

00
0

W
el

l 1
W

el
l 2

W
el

l 3
W

el
l 4

W
el

l 5
To

ta
l

Tr
ea

tm
en

t 
Pl

an
t I

nf
lu

en
t

B
ac

kw
as

h
La

fa
ye

tte
 

D
ist

rib
ut

io
n

D
ay

to
n 

D
ist

rib
ut

io
n

La
fa

ye
tte

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

D
ay

to
n 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
L 

+ 
D

 
D

iff
 B

et
w

ee
n 

W
el

l T
ot

al
 a

nd
 

D
ist

rib
ut

io
n

Ja
n

89
9,

00
0

0
1,

33
8,

00
0

97
1,

00
0

1,
08

5,
00

0
4,

29
3,

00
0

4,
96

9,
00

0
16

6,
00

0
1,

57
9,

00
0

2,
90

9,
00

0
35

%
65

%
4,

48
8,

00
0

-1
95

,0
00

Fe
b

1,
35

3,
00

0
0

2,
56

4,
00

0
2,

20
6,

00
0

2,
09

6,
00

0
8,

21
9,

00
0

9,
02

4,
00

0
29

1,
00

0
5,

58
0,

00
0

1,
99

9,
00

0
74

%
26

%
7,

57
9,

00
0

64
0,

00
0

M
ar

44
2,

00
0

0
83

1,
00

0
75

8,
00

0
67

7,
00

0
2,

70
8,

00
0

3,
35

1,
00

0
11

4,
00

0
1,

41
4,

00
0

1,
50

4,
00

0
48

%
52

%
2,

91
8,

00
0

-2
10

,0
00

A
pr

69
6,

00
0

51
7,

00
0

1,
31

8,
00

0
1,

20
0,

00
0

1,
11

8,
00

0
4,

84
9,

00
0

4,
80

2,
00

0
17

5,
00

0
2,

20
5,

00
0

1,
78

4,
00

0
55

%
45

%
3,

98
9,

00
0

86
0,

00
0

M
ay

11
9,

00
0

61
6,

00
0

65
3,

00
0

71
4,

00
0

63
9,

00
0

2,
74

1,
00

0
2,

67
8,

00
0

92
,0

00
75

7,
00

0
1,

47
8,

00
0

34
%

66
%

2,
23

5,
00

0
50

6,
00

0
Ju

n
66

7,
00

0
84

9,
00

0
1,

07
6,

00
0

95
2,

00
0

88
7,

00
0

4,
43

1,
00

0
4,

37
0,

00
0

16
1,

00
0

1,
63

6,
00

0
1,

92
6,

00
0

46
%

54
%

3,
56

2,
00

0
86

9,
00

0
Ju

l
1,

13
7,

00
0

1,
07

4,
00

0
1,

41
6,

00
0

1,
27

1,
00

0
1,

17
0,

00
0

6,
06

8,
00

0
6,

06
8,

00
0

19
4,

00
0

1,
21

4,
00

0
4,

04
8,

00
0

23
%

77
%

5,
26

2,
00

0
80

6,
00

0
A

ug
1,

36
1,

00
0

1,
16

7,
00

0
1,

74
9,

00
0

1,
50

3,
00

0
1,

08
5,

00
0

6,
86

5,
00

0
6,

86
5,

00
0

26
3,

00
0

1,
98

1,
00

0
4,

23
7,

00
0

31
%

65
%

6,
48

1,
00

0
38

4,
00

0
Se

p
1,

12
2,

00
0

82
8,

00
0

1,
40

8,
00

0
1,

25
8,

00
0

87
8,

00
0

5,
49

4,
00

0
5,

49
4,

00
0

20
1,

00
0

2,
15

6,
00

0
2,

73
6,

00
0

44
%

56
%

4,
89

2,
00

0
60

2,
00

0
O

ct
77

8,
00

0
44

7,
00

0
69

2,
00

0
83

6,
00

0
56

8,
00

0
3,

32
1,

00
0

3,
19

3,
16

4
12

3,
00

0
96

6,
00

0
2,

04
8,

00
0

32
%

68
%

3,
01

4,
00

0
30

7,
00

0
N

ov
1,

58
9,

00
0

85
0,

00
0

1,
80

0,
00

0
1,

58
9,

00
0

1,
08

1,
00

0
6,

90
9,

00
0

6,
21

9,
01

7
22

7,
00

0
4,

37
9,

00
0

1,
59

4,
00

0
73

%
27

%
5,

97
3,

00
0

93
6,

00
0

D
ec

1,
60

0,
00

0
89

6,
00

0
1,

91
2,

00
0

1,
58

5,
00

0
1,

10
8,

00
0

7,
10

1,
00

0
6,

42
3,

79
6

24
0,

00
0

2,
64

2,
00

0
3,

06
1,

00
0

46
%

54
%

5,
70

3,
00

0
1,

39
8,

00
0

To
ta

l
11

,7
63

,0
00

7,
24

4,
00

0
16

,7
57

,0
00

14
,8

43
,0

00
12

,3
92

,0
00

62
,9

99
,0

00
63

,4
56

,9
77

2,
24

7,
00

0
26

,5
09

,0
00

29
,3

24
,0

00
47

%
52

%
56

,0
96

,0
00

6,
90

3,
00

0

In
flu

en
t m

et
er

 b
ro

ke
: u

se
d 

w
el

l m
et

er
s f

or
 to

ta
l

W
el

l 1
W

el
l 2

W
el

l 3
W

el
l 4

W
el

l 5
To

ta
l

Tr
ea

tm
en

t 
Pl

an
t I

nf
lu

en
t

B
ac

kw
as

h
La

fa
ye

tte
 

D
ist

rib
ut

io
n

D
ay

to
n 

D
ist

rib
ut

io
n

La
fa

ye
tte

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

D
ay

to
n 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
L 

+ 
D

 
D

iff
 B

et
w

ee
n 

W
el

l T
ot

al
 a

nd
 

D
ist

rib
ut

io
n

Ja
n

1,
07

2,
00

0
69

8,
00

0
80

6,
00

0
94

6,
00

0
91

1,
00

0
4,

43
3,

00
0

4,
85

7,
00

0
18

0,
00

0
2,

09
0,

00
0

2,
74

0,
00

0
43

%
57

%
4,

83
0,

00
0

-3
97

,0
00

Fe
b

1,
32

6,
00

0
75

8,
00

0
1,

24
2,

00
0

1,
33

6,
00

0
1,

39
4,

00
0

6,
05

6,
00

0
6,

41
3,

00
0

21
0,

00
0

2,
68

2,
00

0
2,

32
7,

00
0

54
%

46
%

5,
00

9,
00

0
1,

04
7,

00
0

M
ar

1,
75

6,
00

0
89

2,
00

0
1,

75
5,

00
0

1,
75

5,
00

0
1,

85
5,

00
0

8,
01

3,
00

0
8,

22
9,

00
0

27
7,

00
0

5,
29

8,
00

0
1,

98
4,

00
0

73
%

27
%

7,
28

2,
00

0
73

1,
00

0
A

pr
2,

00
1,

00
0

80
5,

00
0

1,
88

5,
00

0
2,

02
5,

00
0

1,
66

3,
00

0
8,

37
9,

00
0

9,
26

9,
00

0
29

4,
00

0
5,

81
3,

00
0

2,
17

1,
00

0
73

%
27

%
7,

98
4,

00
0

39
5,

00
0

M
ay

1,
54

1,
00

0
26

0,
00

0
1,

75
3,

00
0

2,
04

3,
00

0
1,

67
2,

00
0

7,
26

9,
00

0
7,

84
9,

00
0

25
4,

00
0

3,
98

6,
00

0
2,

87
9,

00
0

58
%

42
%

6,
86

5,
00

0
40

4,
00

0
Ju

n
1,

86
0,

00
0

0
2,

58
7,

00
0

2,
58

6,
00

0
2,

53
8,

00
0

9,
57

1,
00

0
10

,4
22

,0
00

35
3,

00
0

4,
33

0,
00

0
4,

71
4,

00
0

48
%

52
%

9,
04

4,
00

0
52

7,
00

0
Ju

l
1,

97
4,

00
0

15
,0

00
2,

95
2,

00
0

2,
89

3,
00

0
2,

86
2,

00
0

10
,6

96
,0

00
11

,5
22

,0
00

37
4,

00
0

3,
80

6,
00

0
6,

56
0,

00
0

37
%

63
%

10
,3

66
,0

00
33

0,
00

0
A

ug
1,

49
9,

00
0

35
0,

00
0

2,
52

2,
00

0
2,

18
9,

00
0

2,
22

7,
00

0
8,

78
7,

00
0

10
,3

22
,0

00
33

1,
00

0
3,

78
5,

00
0

5,
08

9,
00

0
43

%
57

%
8,

87
4,

00
0

-8
7,

00
0

Se
p

99
5,

00
0

30
9,

00
0

1,
91

1,
00

0
1,

24
9,

00
0

1,
35

7,
00

0
5,

82
1,

00
0

7,
05

8,
00

0
23

8,
00

0
2,

19
2,

00
0

3,
85

3,
00

0
36

%
64

%
6,

04
5,

00
0

-2
24

,0
00

O
ct

85
5,

00
0

85
,0

00
55

2,
00

0
98

4,
00

0
97

1,
00

0
3,

44
7,

00
0

5,
50

9,
00

0
25

5,
00

0
2,

22
3,

00
0

2,
47

2,
00

0
47

%
53

%
4,

69
5,

00
0

-1
,2

48
,0

00
N

ov
1,

02
0,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

58
6,

00
0

1,
30

9,
00

0
1,

04
6,

00
0

4,
96

2,
00

0
5,

87
9,

00
0

20
5,

00
0

2,
71

7,
00

0
2,

41
4,

00
0

53
%

47
%

5,
13

1,
00

0
-1

69
,0

00
D

ec
69

1,
00

0
0

1,
03

6,
00

0
87

5,
00

0
70

3,
00

0
3,

30
5,

00
0

5,
01

1,
00

0
16

4,
00

0
1,

76
3,

00
0

2,
41

7,
00

0
42

%
58

%
4,

18
0,

00
0

-8
75

,0
00

To
ta

l
16

,5
90

,0
00

4,
17

3,
00

0
20

,5
87

,0
00

20
,1

90
,0

00
19

,1
99

,0
00

80
,7

39
,0

00
92

,3
40

,0
00

3,
13

5,
00

0
40

,6
85

,0
00

39
,6

20
,0

00
51

%
49

%
80

,3
05

,0
00

43
4,

00
0

C
or

re
ct

ed
 D

ist
rib

ut
io

n 
N

um
be

rs

W
el

lfi
el

d 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

 D
ist

ri
bu

tio
n 

20
23

W
el

lfi
el

d 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

 D
ist

ri
bu

tio
n 

20
22

W
el

lfi
el

d 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

 D
ist

ri
bu

tio
n 

20
21

109


	1-Action Item - Adoption of Ordinance 655.pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	2-ORD 655- Psilocybin TMP Land Use Code Revisions Final .pdf
	Section 1.  The City hereby adopts the proposed Land Use and Development Code Text Amendments related to psilocybin land uses as set forth in the attached Exhibit “A”.
	Section 2.  In support of its decision, the City Council adopts the findings within the Planning Commission Recommendation for File No. LA 2022-01, dated November 2, 2022, as set forth in the attached Exhibit “B.”

	1-Park Improvement Survey Staff Report.pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	1-Award of Utility Bridge Construction Services Contract .pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	2-Dayton Award Recommendation.pdf
	2022-11-21 Award Recommendation
	Recommendation Attachments
	Dayton Preliminary Bid Results
	3.1 Dayton Bid Form
	3.2 Dayton Bid Bond Form
	3.4 Dayton First Tier Subcontractor Form_Submit
	3.5 Dayton Bidder Responsibility Forms
	3.7 DAYTON Performance Bond
	3.8 DAYTON Labor Material Bond


	ADP44E.tmp
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	ADPD462.tmp
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	ADPFF09.tmp
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	ADPA10F.tmp
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	3-Wellfield Production and Distribution - Nov 2022.pdf
	For Dist

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	1-Action Item 22-23-08 US Bank Signing Authority.pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	1-Action Item -Res 22-23-09 SCA Grant .pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	4-Exhibit A SCA2023-Dayton.pdf
	a. Prior to the commencement of work, Recipient shall obtain, or require its contractor to obtain, permission from the appropriate ODOT District Office to work on or along the state highway. This Agreement does not provide permission to work on or alo...
	b. ODOT may charge for review of work to be performed on or along the state highway. The estimated cost to Recipient will be determined by ODOT in advance and shall be subject to the approval of Recipient prior to the services being rendered.
	c. If the Project includes traffic control devices (see ODOT’s Traffic Manual, Chapter 5, for a description of traffic control devices) on or along a state highway, Recipient shall, pursuant to Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 734-020-0430, obtain the...
	d. Recipient shall enter into a separate traffic signal agreement with ODOT to cover obligations for any traffic signal being installed on a state highway.
	e. Recipient shall ensure that its electrical inspectors possess a current State Certified Traffic Signal Inspector certificate before the inspectors inspect electrical installations on state highways. The ODOT’s District Office shall verify complianc...

	Action Item - Approval of HPC member reappointment.pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	Blank Page
	1-Approval of Iand I study .pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Staff Report - Domain Change Discussion.pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	Blank Page
	1-Staff Report City of Dayton 2022 Annual Survey.pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	1-Park Improvement Survey Staff Report.pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Wellfield Water Production Report 2021-2023.pdf
	For Dist

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	1- Work Session Item - FY22-23Goals.pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	Blank Page
	1- Work Session Item - FY22-23Goals.pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	1-Action Item - 22-23-10 Declare April 2023 as Abuse Prevention Month.pdf
	From:   Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	1-Action Item - 22-23-10 Declare April 2023 as Abuse Prevention Month.pdf
	From:   Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	1-Action Item - Audit Presentation.pdf
	From:   Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	1-Approval of Iand I study .pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	2023 OLCC Renewal Staff Report.pdf
	From:  Melissa York, City Recorder

	YCSO OLCC Incident Rpt. FY 2021-2022 - Copy.pdf
	OLCC Incident Rpt FY 21-22

	1-Action Item - Adopt City Council Goals 22-23.pdf
	From:  Rochelle Roaden, City Manager

	Local Government Spring Conference.pdf
	Local Government Spring Conference
	Registration Now Open!

	Preliminary Agenda

	Wellfield Water Production Report 2021-2023.pdf
	For Dist




